
 

 

NOTICE OF A MEETING 

 

COMMISSION MEETING 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

111 LIBERTY STREET, SUITE 100 

COLUMBUS, OHIO 43215 

SCIOTO CONFERENCE ROOM 

 

Thursday, October 8, 2015, 1:30 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1:30 p.m. 1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

1:31 p.m. 2. Welcome and Introductions – Eric Phillips (Union County-Marysville 

Economic Development Partnership), MORPC Chair 

 

1:35 p.m. 3. Community Leader Spotlight: Ohio Smart Mobility Initiative – Carla 

Bailo, OSU College of Engineering Assistant Vice President of 

Mobility Research and Development 

 

1:45 p.m. 4. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of September 10, 2015 Commission Meeting Minutes 

 

1:46 p.m. 5. Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive 

Director 

 Quarterly Membership Update – Eileen Leuby, MORPC 

Membership Services Coordinator 

 

1:55 p.m. 6. Proposed Resolution 15-15: “ESTABLISHING POPULATION 

ESTIMATES AS A BASIS FOR 2016 ANNUAL PARTICIPATION FEES TO 

BE ASSESSED MEMBERS” – Nancy Reger, MORPC Regional Data & 

Mapping Director  

 

2:00 p.m. 7. Proposed Resolution 16-15: “AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO FILE APPLICATIONS WITH, EXECUTE AGREEMENTS 

WITH, AND RECEIVE FUNDS FROM THE OSTEOPATHIC HERITAGE 

FOUNDATION AND OTHERS FOR A PROJECT CALLED AGE-FRIENDLY 

COLUMBUS”  – Kerstin Carr, MORPC Planning & Environment 

Director and Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & Government Affairs 

Director 

 

 Special Guests and Presentations 

 

2:05 p.m. 8. Columbus Zoo and Aquarium – Tom Stalf, Columbus Zoo and 

Aquarium President and CEO 



 
 
Commission Meeting Agenda 

October 8, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 Committees 

 

2:10 p.m. 9. Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips (Union County-

Marysville Economic Development Partnership), MORPC Chair 

 

2:11 p.m. a. Call to Order – Eric Phillips (Union County-Marysville Economic 

Development Partnership), MORPC Chair 

2:12 p.m. b. Metropolitan Planning Organization Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

o Popular TIP 

 Energy & Air Quality – Christina O’Keeffe, Director 

 

2:20 p.m. c. Consent Agenda 

 Approval of October 8, 2015 Transportation Policy 

Committee Meeting Minutes 

 Proposed Resolution T-20-15: “TO AUTHORIZE THE 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND AND ENTER INTO 

AN AGREEMENT FOR UP TO $50,000 WITH THE OHIO 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGENCY FOR A MULTI-REGIONAL 

RIDESHARING SYSTEM”  

 

2:21 p.m. d. Proposed Resolution T-19-15: “ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES FOR 

CENTRAL OHIO CANDIDATE PROJECTS SUBMITTED IN 2015 FOR 

TRAC FUNDING” – Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation Systems 

& Funding Director 

 

2:26 p.m. e. Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) – Thea Walsh, MORPC 

Transportation Systems & Funding Director 

 

2:35 p.m. f. Adjourn Transportation Policy Committee – Eric Phillips (Union 

County-Marysville Economic Development Partnership), MORPC 

Chair 

 

2:37 p.m. 10. Motion to Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

 

2:40 p.m. 11. Sustainability Advisory Committee – Steve Stolte (Union County), 

Sustainability Advisory Committee Chair 

 

2:45 p.m. 12. Regional Policy Roundtable – Marilee Chinnici-Zuercher (City of 

Dublin), Regional Policy Roundtable Chair 

a. Legislative Update – Steve Tugend, Kegler Hill Brown & Ritter 

and Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & Government Affairs 

Director 

 

2:55 p.m. 13. Other Business 



 
 
Commission Meeting Agenda 

October 8, 2015 

Page 3 

 

3:00 p.m. 14. Adjourn – Eric Phillips (Union County-Marysville Economic 

Development Partnership), MORPC Chair 

 
 

PLEASE NOTIFY SHARI SAUNDERS AT 614-233-4169 OR ssaunders@morpc.org  
IF YOU REQUIRE SPECIAL ASSISTANCE. 

 
 

The next Commission Meeting is 
Thursday, November 12, 2015 at 1:30 p.m. 

111 Liberty Street, Suite 100 
Columbus, Ohio 43215 

 
 
 
 
When you arrive in MORPC’s lobby, a video screen will display the day’s meetings. 
Each meeting will list a phone extension. Use the phone in the lobby to call the 
extension and someone will come escort you to the meeting.   
 
 
When parking in MORPC's parking lot, please be sure to park in a MORPC visitor 
space or in a space marked with an “M”. Handicapped parking is available at the 
side of MORPC’s building. MORPC is accessible by CBUS. 

 

 

mailto:ssaunders@morpc.org


Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Commission  

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, September 10, 2015 

1:30 p.m. 

 

Commission Members 

Karen Angelou 

Trudy Bartley 

Chris Bauserman 

Jeff Benton 

Randy Bowman 

Brandi Braun 

Marilyn Brown 

Andrew Brush 

Greg Butcher 

Steve Campbell 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

Karl Craven 

Michael Ebert 

Shyra Eichhorn 

John Eisel 

Terry Emery 

Matt Greeson 

Tracy Hatmaker 

Dan Havener 

Tom Homan 

Larry Jenkins 

Steve Kennedy 

Ben Kessler 

Benjamin King 

Bill LaFayette 

Rich Lehmuth 

Barb Lewis 

Kim Maggard 

Glenn Marzluf 

Rory McGuiness 

Gary Merrell 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

Rob Platte 

Hannah Reed 

Bryan Rhoads 

Eric Richter 

Dean Ringle 

Allen Rothermel for Scott  

  Weatherby 

Michael Schadek 

Jim Schimmer 

Elissa Schneider 

Don Schonhardt 

Ashley Senn 

Ike Stage 

Scott Tourville 

Bill Vance 

Alan Vandewater 

Nancy White

Associate Members 

Tom Goodney 

Tim Moloney 

Kyle O’Keefe for Ty Marsh 

Nikki Scarpitti 

 

Policy Committee Members 

Holly Mattei 

David Paul 

Thom Slack 

Curtis Stitt 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Mark Crosten 

Joe Garrity 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Bevan Schneck 

Thea Walsh 

Guests 

Brent Bogard, ODOT 

Sgt. Rick Hardy, Grove City Police 

Mike Hochron, Franklin County BOC 

Dave Holstein, ODOT 

Cornell Robertson, FCEO 

 

Acting Chair Matt Greeson called the Commission Meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. followed by the pledge of 

allegiance. 

 

Welcome and Introductions – Matt Greeson, MORPC Acting Chair 

Acting Chair Greeson welcomed and introduced new commission representatives and guests: 

 Jeff Benton, Delaware County 

 Shyra Eichhorn, Liberty Township in Delaware County 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

September 10, 2015 

Page 2 

 
 John Eisel, Violet Township 

 Kyle O’Keefe, SWACO 

 Eric Richter, Union County 

 Allen Rothermel, Village of Sunbury 

 Alan Vandewater, Village of New Lexington 

 Hannah Reed, City of Columbus 

 Brandi Braun, City of Columbus  

 

Community Leader Spotlight: Distracted Driving Education-Grove City Driving Simulator – Richard “Ike” Stage, 

City of Grove City Mayor and Sergeant Rick Hardy, Grove City Police 

The City of Grove City brought their distracted driving simulator to MORPC to give Commission members an 

opportunity to experience the effects of distracted driving. The simulator is targeted at youth and distracted 

drivers. About two and a half years ago, Grove City began the driving simulator as an opportunity to take the 

message to the community’s youth.  Approximately 3,000 Grove City teenagers have gone through the 

simulator, which simulates two types of capabilities: texting and driving, and impaired driving. The teenagers 

experience real-life results of the scenarios. For instance, an impaired driver would go through the standard 

testing given by police to someone suspected of driving under the influence. If a scenario resulted in a crash, 

the fire department could simulate emergency procedures for the crash victim.  

 

Drug forfeiture seizure funds paid for the simulator. The simulator cost $17,000, plus $11,000 for the 

graphics package. Let Mayor Stage know if your community is interested in borrowing the simulator. Thom 

Slack announced that ODOT District 6 also has a simulator that can be reserved.  

 

Consent Agenda 

Marilyn Brown made a motion to approve the consent agenda, second by Derrick Clay; motion passed.   

 

Executive Director’s Report – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

MORPC will offer the Local Government Internship Program again next summer. Details will be worked out in 

time for communities to include the program in their 2016 budgets. 

 

The Data Site Task Force is working on recommendations to bring to the Commission later this fall. 

 

Discussions continue with Columbus State regarding the building search. MORPC team members are focusing 

on broader aspects of the partnership and will have more information to share later this fall. 

 

MORPC’s Finance Department received the Auditor of State Award with Distinction for clean and accurate 

financial record keeping for FY 2014. Of the 5,600 government entities in the state, less than five percent 

qualify for this award.   

 

MORPC’s full time insight2050 Planner for Phase 2 is onboard. The insight2050 Steering Committee met last 

week and is focused on four pieces:  

 Outreach – MORPC team members have visited over 100 different entities to talk about insight2050 

 Communication Strategy – new theme and more targeted messages for media 

 Peer Typologies and Infill Directories – develop useful tools for community development and re-

development 

 Best Practices – create an online resource with best management practices related to the findings 

and metrics of insight2050 

 
MORPC’s annual Summit on Sustainability is Friday, October 2, 2015 at the Hilton Columbus Downtown. This 

year’s summit will look at sustainability in multiple areas: financial, policy, land use, energy and air quality, 

and transportation. One of the breakout sessions features Ike Stage, Anthony Jones, Michael Bongiorno and 



Commission Meeting Minutes 

September 10, 2015 

Page 3 

 
Kyle Katz and the impact of insight2050 on their communities. The luncheon panel includes representatives 

from Amazon, Honda, and OSU and will be moderated by Christina O’Keeffe.  

 

MORPC, ODOT and the City of Columbus are hosting the 2016 National Safe Routes to School Conference 

April 5-7, 2016. Nationwide Insurance is the program sponsor. The conference averages between 600 and 

750 attendees. Registration opens January 2016. Session proposals are being accepted now. 

 

MORPC is working with the Columbus Region Coalition on a new Competitive Advantage Process. The process 

identifies the top projects in regional infrastructure to advocate for in Washington, DC. It builds on the existing 

project selection process and provides a link between economic development and infrastructure priorities. 

Columbus2020, the Columbus Chamber, MODE and MORPC will work with the counties to determine the top 

seven to ten regional projects as well as a larger regional list of significant projects which will include at least 

one from each county.  

 

MORPC’s Rural Transportation Planning Organization (RTPO) pilot project is getting close to launching. MORPC 

will provide transportation expertise to help form transportation plans for Union, Madison, Pickaway, and 

Fairfield Counties. These counties are adjacent to or partially within the MORPC MPO, but are not entirely 

within MORPC MPO boundaries. Official action will be presented to the Commission later this year. 

 

The suggested trick-or-treat night for 2015 is Thursday, October 29; rain or shine. 

 

Proposed Resolution 12-15: “ACCEPTING THE VILLAGE OF NEW LEXINGTON (PERRY COUNTY) AS A MEMBER 

OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION” – William Murdock, MORPC Executive Director 

A motion was made to approve Resolution 12-15, second by Karen Angelou; motion passed. 

 

Member Spotlight: Metro Parks – Tim Moloney, Metro Parks Executive Director 

Tim Moloney gave an overview of Metro Parks, which is celebrating its 70th year. Metro Parks’ mission is to 

conserve open spaces, while providing places and opportunities that encourage people to discover and 

experience nature. Metro Parks accomplishes their mission in several ways through wetland restoration, 

children’s programs, developing and maintaining trails, education, etc. 

 

Committees 

 

Regional Policy Roundtable – Steve Campbell, Roundtable Vice-Chair 

Steve Campbell reported that a working group has been formed to draft the 2016 Public Policy Agenda. The 

agenda will be presented to the Commission in November for comments and presented for adoption in 

December. Working groups members are Steve Campbell, Gary Merrell, Kim Maggard, Ike Stage, Karen 

Angelou, Trudy Bartley, Erik Janas, Shaune Skinner, Ben Collins, Marchelle Moore and Tracy Hatmaker. 

 

The federal transportation bill has been extended through October 29, 2015. 

 

 Legislative Update – Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & Government Affairs Director 
Laura Koprowski announced the top five legislative issues this fall: 

o Energy 

o Transportation funding 

o 2016 Capital budget  

o Statewide ballot issues 

o Water issues 

 

The question was asked if MORPC will take a stand on Issue 3. Historically MORPC does not take a stand on 

ballot issues. Each local government will make its own decision.  

 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/09-10-2015-Metro%20Parks%20Overview%20-%20Commission.pdf


Commission Meeting Minutes 

September 10, 2015 

Page 4 

 
The License Plate Fee Task Force will send a survey to members trying to get better data on how fees are 

being used, future needs, etc. 

 

See the September 2015 Legislative Update for other legislative news. 

 

 Proposed Resolution 13-15: “SUPPORT SUB. HB 176 THAT WILL CREATE THE GASEOUS FUEL VEHICLE 

CONVERSION PROGRAM” – Laura Koprowski, MORPC Public & Government Affairs Director 
The Commission supported similar legislation in the last General Assembly. This will tax CNG and LNG fuel. 

The tax will pay for infrastructure and will be distributed under the same formula that applies through the 

gas tax distribution. Transit is exempt from this tax. 

 

Rob Platte made a motion to approve Resolution 13-15, second by Bill LaFayette; motion passed. 

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee Update – Jim Schimmer, Sustainability Advisory Committee Vice-Chair 

Copies of the Regional Sustainability Agenda were provided to attendees. The document serves as a guide for 

MORPC’s work on sustainability. It will be highlighted at the Summit on Sustainability. 

 

The Central Ohio Greenways Board met August 26, 2015 and began developing goals and priorities for the 

year that will focus around partnership, marketing, programming, and trail development. Through a 

competitive RFP process, planningNEXT was selected to conduct a 5-year Central Ohio Greenways Strategic 

Plan over the next four to six months. 

 

The Energy & Air Quality Working Group met July 28, 2015, the same day MORPC issued an Air Quality Alert. 

The working group is watching for the new ozone standards anticipated by the U.S. EPA in October and 

discussed the recently released Clean Power Plan that consists of final rules to regulate carbon through the 

Clean Air Act. A subcommittee was formed to study the final rule, gain an understanding of the proposal and 

identify impacts to the Central Ohio region. The subcommittee will report its findings to the working group and 

the Sustainability Advisory Committee in the coming months.   

 

The next Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting is October 20, 2015. 

 

Transportation Policy Committee – Matt Greeson, MORPC Acting Chair  

Acting Chair Matt Greeson called the Transportation Policy Committee Session to order at 2:40 p.m. The session 

adjourned at 3:04 p.m. Separate minutes are attached. 

 

Approve Actions of the Transportation Policy Committee 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the actions of the Transportation Policy Committee; motion 

passed. 

 

The Commission Meeting adjourned at 3:05 p.m.  

 

 

 

 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/09-10-2015%20-%20September%20Leg%20Update.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/forms/1.MORPC_SAC_Brochure_Final_Update%20(00000002).pdf


1 
 

 

 

MORPC Monthly Agency Report 

September 2015 

 
Public & Government Affairs  

Laura Koprowski – lkoprowski@morpc.org 

 

Government Affairs 

The Public Policy Agenda Working Group began meeting in September to create a 2016 Public Policy 

Agenda. Steve Campbell, City of Columbus and Vice Chair of the Regional Policy Working Group, 

chairs the working group. A draft 2016 Public Policy Agenda will be presented to the Commission in 

November. 

 

MORPC, Columbus2020 and MODE hosted a meeting of the region’s community economic 

development leaders to discuss creating a competitive advantage list of priority infrastructure 

projects in the 13-county region. This process would complement and inform the region’s current 

Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy as well as the Columbus Region Coalition’s 

advocacy efforts at the state and federal levels. The goal is to complete the project selection process 

by the end of this year. 

 

The License Plate Fee Task Force, aimed at better engaging our local government and key 

transportation partners in seeking additional revenue mechanisms for local transportation, sent a 

survey to MORPC member communities. The survey is to collect more information on how much 

communities collect from license fees, what they are used for, and if increasing the maximum fee 

would be beneficial. This collected data will be used to better educate lawmakers. 

 

MORPC’s Public & Government Affairs Team Members, along with Kegler, Brown Hill & Ritter, 

participated in meetings with our state legislative delegation to discuss the 2015 Public Policy 

Agenda and other top advocacy efforts. Meetings took place with the following legislators: 

 Senator Hughes 

 Representatives Kunze 

 Representative Boyce 

 

In support of our regional transportation efforts, MORPC Team Members attended COTA’s press 

event, at Columbus State. This event focused on federal funding for a proposed bus rapid transit line 

running from Westerville to downtown Columbus. Senator Sherrod Brown was the featured speaker 

at the event. 

 

MORPC recently mailed out its annual print newsletter, updating communities on the many programs 

and services that are offered throughout the year. Highlights include the MTP webmap, the Impacts 

of Trails study, and insight2050 progress, along with sustainability, air quality, and weatherization 

information. 

 

Membership 

See the attachment. 

 

MORPC In the News 

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/lkoprowski@morpc.org


2 
 

See the attachment for a list of the various news and media articles for June. 

 

Transportation Systems & Funding  

Thea Walsh - twalsh@morpc.org 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) 

The time period for submitting project suggestions and comments on candidate projects ended 

August 31, 2015. Over 300 project suggestions and almost 380 comments were submitted through 

the webmap. Team Members are working to analyze and address the comments and evaluate the 

candidate projects for inclusion in the 2016-2040 Metropolitan Transportation Plan. 

  

Highways 

ODOT held landowner, stakeholder and public meetings on the US 42 Access Management Study at 

Jerome Township on September 22, 2015. The study is looking at the access points along the US 

42 corridor from London to Delaware. The goal is to maintain capacity and safety along the 

regionally significant corridor, even though it is only a two-lane road. ODOT reviewed the 

recommendations included in the draft report to close, realign and provide frontage/backage roads 

along the corridor. The draft report is available at 

http://www.dot.state.oh.us/districts/D06/projects/Pages/US-42-Access-Management.aspx 

ODOT is taking comments through October 6, 2015. 

 

The 2040 traffic projections were provided to the City of Delaware to support its thoroughfare plan 

update.  

 

Transit/Human Services 

MORPC Team Members continued coordinating with FTA’s Title VI requirements needed to receive 

and allocate Section 5310 funds. All issues were resolved and we received authorization to begin 

charging our administrative cost of administering the program. After MORPC receives a Review Letter 

from FTA, updates to the Title VI Program will be made by MORPC resolution. 

 

Information on COTA's proposed new service between Crosswoods and Ohio Health's Westerville 

Medical Campus at Polaris Parkway and Africa Road was coordinated with DATABus. Both these 

locations connect COTA and DATABus. MORPC met with COTA, the City of Grandview Heights and 

concerned citizens regarding bus routes and stops in and around Grandview Yard.  

 

DATABus will be modifying the Red and Purple routes (Delaware, Sunbury, and Westerville) to 

operate just between Delaware and Sunbury. This will be effective October 19, 2015. 

  

RideSolutions 

RideSolutions Team Members have seen an increased interest in vanpooling over the past two 

months, resulting in five new vanpools. The Team Members credit vanpool subsidies offered by 

MORPC as the reason for the growth. Subsidies make vanpooling more affordable for all.  

 

Employers in Franklin and Licking Counties met with Team Members to discuss alternative 

transportation options to help increase their employment pool of workers. Companies feel that 

vanpooling may be a viable option to offer current employees and new recruits. 

 

A grant application was submitted to the Local Government Innovation Fund for potential financial 

assistance to help purchase new ridematching software. The grant represents a collaborative effort 

from various MPOs throughout the state to pool resources and purchase a system that multiple 

partners can use. 

 

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/twalsh@morpc.org
http://www.dot.state.oh.us/districts/D06/projects/Pages/US-42-Access-Management.aspx


3 
 

The Westerville Area Chamber of Commerce held a roundtable to discuss traffic congestion within 

the area. Businesses were given the opportunity to express their traffic concerns. MORPC Team 

Members developed a survey to capture responses from employees who work and commute within 

the Polaris area. MORPC is developing traffic and upcoming project information sheets to share with 

the communities and employers in the area. 
   

Infrastructure Funding 

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

The work on developing a Popular TIP was completed and will be revealed during the October 

Committee meetings. The Popular TIP is a series of short information sheets with maps, projects list 

and charts summarizing the information in the full TIP document.  

 

Ohio Public Works Commission 

For District 3 (Franklin County) twenty-two project applications were received for Round 30 SCIP/LTIP 

funding. Total requests were for more than $49 million, and currently we have $25.6 million in 

allocations ($19.3 million for SCIP and $6.3 million for LITP). Applications were received from Bexley, 

Columbus (4), Gahanna, Groveport (2), New Albany, Reynoldsburg, Whitehall, Franklin County 

Engineer (3), Franklin County Sanitary Engineer, Clinton Township, Franklin Township, Hamilton 

Township, Jefferson Township (2), and Prairie Township (2). Final recommendations will be 

announced at a public meeting on Friday, December 11, 2015 at MORPC. 

 

Data and Mapping 

Nancy Reger - nreger@morpc.org 

 

Regional Data Task Force 

Recommendations from the Data Task Force are being drafted for release in early October. The Task 

Force will meet in mid - October to discuss the recommendations before presenting the results to the 

Commission. 

 

Trick or Treat Web Map 

Team Members made a new map for viewing when trick or treat is scheduled for communities. You 

can view it on your phone, your tablet, or your computer by going to the MORPC website at: 

http://arcgiswebadp1.morpc.org/webmaps/halloween/index.html.  

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan 

Data and Mapping Team Members prepared the database to use when evaluating candidate 

projects. This includes a user interface that includes results from automated calculations of 

quantitative evaluation criteria, and the ability for users to enter qualitative statements about the 

projects and scoring information. In addition, a map was created for reviewers to use to toggle on 

and off evaluation criteria when making their recommendations. Data & Mapping Team Members 

are also participating in the evaluation process. 

  

insight2050 Phase 2a 

Final tweaks are being completed on defining development typologies, and the difference between 

'existing’ and ‘potential’ land use (as identified from local land use plans during the forecasts 

developed for the 2016-2040 MTP) and are being analyzed through GIS as a dimension of 

identifying ‘underutilized land’. This information will be shared with the Grove City development staff 

in the next few weeks and then presented to a group of developers for input. 

  

Land Use Projections for Special Transportation Studies 

Every transportation study that uses MORPC’s travel demand model includes a land use component. 

Even though the regional land use projections were recently completed, Team Members tweak them 

for special studies because they have some constraints that do not lend themselves to actually 

file:///C:/Users/shufstedler/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/QEPGBLFF/nreger@morpc.org
http://arcgiswebadp1.morpc.org/webmaps/halloween/index.html


4 
 

sizing infrastructure needs.  Team Members are now reviewing land use projections in the Easton 

area. 

 

Cheri Mansperger, MORPC’s GIS Manager, co-presented MORPC’s Land Use Projection Model at the 

Ohio GIS Conference.   

 

Member Services 

Population estimates for the year 2016 

were reported to member communities. 

The projections are made using locally 

issued building permits that MORPC 

collects, and translates into a master 

database file. The chart is a snapshot of 

residential building permits issued by 

MORPC’s members since 2000. About 

72,600 permits were issued before the 

slump of 2006, and 41,600 since. Over 

24,000 permits have been issued since 

2010. 

 

MORPC Planning and Environment Department 

Kerstin Carr - kcarr@morpc.org 

 

Active Transportation Planning 

Team Members participated in Columbus Public Health’s Chronic Disease Prevention Advisory Board 

meeting. This group’s work is related to active transportation, Safe Routes to School, Central Ohio 

Greenways Board, and more. A representative from the American Planning Association attended to 

hear about Columbus’ Planning for Healthy Communities grant work. 

 

Team Members participated in an ODOT Bike Route Designation Update Meeting for Districts 5 & 6. 

The District bike/ped coordinators are going to lead the outreach efforts to solicit community review 

of proposed state and federal bike routes. MORPC Team Members will be available to assist the 

coordinators if/when needed. 

 

Complete Streets  

Team Members played the Complete Streets Game with Upper Arlington’s Planning and Zoning 

Commission. The group enjoyed the opportunity and even shared their suggestions of adaptations to 

the game for playing with different audiences. 

 

Team Members presented on MORPC’s Complete Streets Policy and Toolkit and facilitated playing of 

the Complete Streets Game at the Ohio Planning Conference. The session also included 

presentations regarding Ohio-wide and city/village Complete Streets perspectives.  

 

Local Planning Assistance  

The City of Worthington staff and MORPC Team Members met to discuss short- and long-term plans 

for the Wilson Bridge Road Corridor. There are several possible funding opportunities for the city to 

explore with regard to bicycle and pedestrian improvements. Team Members scheduled a meeting 

with Worthington and ODOT to further discuss options.  

 

Bicycle/Pedestrian Monitoring  

Team Members facilitated and participated in the semi-annual volunteer bike/ped counts. Over 30 

individuals participated in the event and collected data at around 25 locations.  

 

mailto:kcarr@morpc.org


5 
 

Training  

Team Members participated in the Bikeway Design Training through ODOT’s Local Technical 

Assistance Program. Public and private planners and engineers from across Ohio learned about 

current bikeway design standards and best practices. The workshop was led by Alta + Planning.  

 

Transportation Safety 

Team Members attended the Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) Steering Committee Meeting on 

behalf of the Ohio Association of Regional Councils (OARC). The agenda included a review of 

quarterly crash trends, an SHSP status report on its action plan, and an introduction of the “New 

Emphasis Area Teams” who will play a key role in implementation of the plan. 

 

At the Safe Communities Coalition meeting, various coalition members provided updates on current 

initiatives and Columbus Public Health staff discussed activities of the Safe Kids and Safe 

Communities groups. 

 

Team Members participated in an FHWA review of ODOT's Strategic Highway Safety Plan, and 

discussed MPO implementation of the Strategic Highway Safety Plan and partnerships between 

MPOs and ODOT on regional safety projects. 

 

Team Members facilitated a conference call with engineers from communities with roundabouts or 

planning to build roundabouts to discuss educational outreach on how to safely use them. 

 

Systematic Safety Improvement Program  

For the Systematic Safety Improvement Program, Team Members reached out to project sponsors 

from the various jurisdictions for prioritization listings of the locations they had originally provided. 

Team Members submitted these locations to ODOT for review and evaluation. 

 

TRAC  

Team Members began project evaluation work on the TRAC funding applications with regards to 

safety. This involved pulling and filtering crashes within the Area of Interest and developing project 

summary statistics. 

 

Training  

The National Highway Institute (NHI) Designing for Pedestrian Safety training was held at MORPC. 

Thirty participants attended, including staff from the local, regional, state, and federal levels, along 

with various consulting staff.  

 

insight2050 

Team Members facilitated a meeting of the Communications Committee, which includes new 

membership proposed by the working group, to establish goals and strategies for Phase II of the 

Strategic Communications Plan. Team Members also facilitated a meeting of the Executive 

Committee, which is interested in expanding the scope of outreach to include targeted audiences 

like businesses/chambers, school districts, etc. The Committee recommended developing 

photographic case studies for Phase II outreach. Team Members reviewed photographer 

submissions and selected photographer Randall Schieber. Mr. Schieber will photograph a list of 

“desired images” for the insight2050 project through October 2015. 

 

The ULI Real Estate workshop on best practices for redeveloping aging strip retail centers offered 

possible best practices in placemaking dividends and the Carmel, IN Urban Design Initiative. Team 

Members also attended the US Green Building Council Lunch & Leaders event talk on the 

development of Grandview Yard.  

 

Monthly Outreach  



6 
 

insight2050 was presented six times to a total audience of approximately 250 people in September. 

Audiences included: Clintonville Area Commission, Columbus & Franklin County Metro Parks Board, 

Columbus Apartment Association, Village of Sunbury, MORPC Regional Education Forum “Farmland, 

Food & Fiscal Factors,” and the Dublin-Worthington Rotary. 

 

Strategic Communications Plan  

Team Members continued to draft the Phase II Strategic Communications Plan based on input from 

the Communications Committee.  

 

Info Share Meetings 

In late August, Team Members facilitated an Info Share meeting with Marble Cliff. They talked about 

bike paths, potential development, and the village’s new Strategic Plan. 

 

Team Members facilitated an Info Share meeting with the City of Columbus to discuss recent 

planning, development, and infrastructure projects around the city, including an update on Connect 

Columbus. 

 

Greenways & Water Quality Program 

The Water Quality Working Group meeting included a guided tour of the Crawford Farms 

subdivision’s storm water basin retrofit project by Franklin Soil and Water Conservation District. The 

group discussed how this idea could be expanded across Central Ohio.  

 

Team Members attended a meeting of the subcommittee of the Columbus Green Team to take notes 

as part of the City’s efforts to develop an adaptive management plan across all sectors.  

 

Team Members met with staff from the Franklin County Engineer’s Office about the 2016 Greenways 

Scope of Service. 

 

Team Members attended the Franklin Soil and Water Conservation District’s Annual Meeting. Friends 

of the Lower Olentangy Watershed (FLOW) received the Conservation Leadership Award. 

 

Central Ohio Greenways Board (COG)  

Team Members facilitated both the second and third COG Board meetings. Discussions focused 

around the first year priorities and next steps for Working Teams and input on MORPC's Public Policy 

Agenda. At the third meeting, planningNext, as the selected consultant for developing the 5-year 

Strategic Plan, presented on its proposed approach and solicited ideas for entities to research as 

part of the Best Practices Review task.  

 

Training  

Team Members participated in the Climate Vulnerabilities Workshop Road Show at Franklin Soil and 

Water Conservation District. The purpose was to facilitate a discussion and assign priorities to the 

impacts that the Columbus Green Team Working Groups have identified based on risk and adaptive 

capacity.  

 

Presentations  

Team Members presented the Impact of Trails study results to the Ohio Association of Regional 

Councils (OARC).  

 

Summit on Sustainability  

The Summit on Sustainability program and logistics are finalized. The luncheon program will feature 

Amazon, Honda, and OSU to discuss current and new energy practices around Central Ohio. 

Breakout sessions will be held throughout the day. Latest registration numbers indicate a nearly 

sold-out event at 400 people. 



7 
 

 

National Safe Routes to School Conference 

The program committee met and finalized the program matrix and began to brainstorm workshop 

ideas. A call for proposals was sent out in late August and proposals will be accepted through 

October 31, 2015 at www.saferoutesconference.org.  

 

Team Members met with Dr. Mike and Dr. Eleni of Nationwide Children’s Hospital to discuss their 

keynote panel at the conference. Team Members also presented information through a webinar to 

the Ohio Safe Routes to School Network about the conference. 

 

Energy & Air Quality 

Christina O'Keeffe - cokeeffe@morpc.org 

 

Air Quality  

On September 12, 2015, NBC4 aired a news story featuring MORPC’s air quality forecasting. 

Meteorologist Ben Gelber contacted MORPC for an interview and additional data about the high - 

moderate air quality forecasts observed over Labor Day weekend, which were influenced by high 

temperatures and carry-over pollution from western wildfires. The story also highlighted the 

continued trend of improvement in the Columbus Region.  

 

MORPC Team Members presented at a quarterly GreenSpot Green Venues meeting focused on air 

quality and transportation. The meeting focused on key topics from the Columbus GreenSpot 

commitment to facilitate discussion of best practices among participants.   

 

Energy & Air Quality Working Group  

The next working group meeting is September 29, 2015. The agenda includes a presentation on the 

Ohio EPA’s process for developing a State Implementation Plan (SIP) as we anticipate U.S. EPA’s 

announcement for a stronger ground-level ozone standard on October 1, 2015. 

 

Clean Power Plan Subcommittee  

The Clean Power Plan was announced by President Obama on August 3, 2015 as a step taken by the 

federal government toward reducing carbon emissions from power plants. This subcommittee was 

formed to draw upon the expertise of the Energy & Air Quality Working Group in order to gain a better 

understanding of the proposal and the potential impacts on the Central Ohio Region. The committee 

convened throughout September to discuss key aspects of the plan and is in the process of 

developing a summary document to share with the MORPC Sustainability Advisory Committee and 

Regional Policy Roundtable in October.  

 

Housing Services 

Franklin County Housing Repair and Rehabilitation 

MORPC Team Members have completed the 2013 funding round of the Franklin County Urgent 

Needs program with 100% of the units of service for the required number of households served. 

Final billing and reporting are nearly complete with all but one project invoiced and closed.  

 

MORPC Team Members continue to work on the 2014 funding agreement with more than 100% of 

the units of service identified for achieving the required goal. Of these units, 40% of the units are 

complete, 27% of the units are in the construction phase, and the rest are in the application through 

the bidding process stages. 

   

MORPC executed an agreement with Franklin County for the 2015 funding round. Projects have 

already begun in this round, which will serve between 24 to 30 households. Nearly 20% of units of 

service are identified to achieve the required goal. All of these are in the application through the 

bidding process stages.   

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/cokeeffe@morpc.org


8 
 

 

Rehab Team Members are managing the final phase of the Franklin County Single-Family 

Rehabilitation program, which is on schedule for completion by November 2015. The final project is 

under construction and is expected to be completed very soon.    

 

United Way of Central Ohio – Franklinton Neighborhood Home Repair 

All of the United Way Franklinton first round projects are complete. The second round funding of the 

United Way Franklinton program is underway. We are still taking intake and applications of eligible 

clients; 40% of the projects are ready to close and begin construction. Marketing strategies are being 

increased to get more applicants.  

 

Weinland Park Home Repair 

Rehab Team Members have identified all the projects for the final round of the 2014 funding round. 

This round of the Weinland Park program consists of two separate groups of projects, which are in 

varying stages of the process. Overall, nearly 85% of the work is complete as compared to the goals 

for clients served, and several more units are in the final construction phase and nearing 

completion. We have applied for a new round of the Weinland Park program and look forward to this 

beginning before the end of 2015.  

 

Near East Side Exterior Home Repair Program 

The initial funding round of this pilot program through the partnership with PACT and Homeport is 

now complete. This program consisted of four projects. MORPC has reported the program results and 

updated our PowerPoint presentation for PACT and Homeport. PACT and Homeport presented this 

PowerPoint report to their board and received approval for a second round of the program. We will 

start this new round with a client meeting on October 8, 2015. Homeport will work with client 

applications, and MORPC will do work inspections and the bidding process yet this year. Construction 

may not begin until late winter or early spring 2016 depending on the winter weather conditions.    

 

Neighborhood Stabilization Program (NSP) 

Team Members are working with the City of Columbus on a new NSP2 agreement that utilizes 

recaptured funds from previous MORPC work. The new program includes strategic partnerships with 

COCIC and Homeport. The agreement is under review by the City of Columbus.  

 

Residential Energy Efficiency Program 

The WarmChoice program is ahead of our year-to-date inspection goal with 81% of initial inspections 

complete. With 69% of total households completed with services, MORPC Team Members will focus 

efforts during the remaining year on heating and weatherization measures installed by contractors 

and final inspections.  

 

The 2015 State of Ohio HWAP Program began July 1, 2015 and MORPC met the reporting 

requirements for July and August production. Due to program changes and the adoption of a 

Standard Work Specification by the State of Ohio, MORPC is evaluating all in-process HWAP jobs to 

ensure compliance with new program requirements and standards. The State of Ohio has 

announced that HWAP territories will be re-bid statewide with an RFP expected to be released in 

early October and due in early December. 

 

The 2015 State of Ohio EPP Program has been underway since July 1, 2015 with a dedicated focus 

on baseload audits to support MORPC’s increased funding allocation of $300,000.   

 

The AEP CAP program is mid-way through this year’s 8-month contract (April thru December) and 

production is on pace with 38% of the budget allocation submitted for completed projects. 

 

Materials Management Working Group 



9 
 

The Working Group meeting included a presentation from Brenda Metcalf about the Ohio 

Environmental STEM Career Program, a collaboration of the Environmental Education Council of 

Ohio, Ohio EPA, and OSU. Mentors from diverse environmental career backgrounds are encouraged 

to help support the program. David Celebrezze, Columbus GreenSpot Coordinator, provided an 

update on a pilot initiative to increase recycling and minimize plastic bag use at targeted grocery 

stores. The Chair of the Organics Diversion Subcommittee provided a report on the group’s activities 

and recommendations, and the Working Group voted to move the recommendations forward to the 

Sustainability Advisory Committee.  

 

Organics Diversion Subcommittee 

The joint subcommittee of the Materials Management Working Group and Regional Food Council 

finalized its recommendations which were presented to the Materials Management Working Group 

for endorsement during the September meeting. The topic of organics recycling will also be featured 

in a Summit workshop on October 2, 2015 which will include a presentation from the subcommittee.  

This subcommittee has completed its work and will no longer meet. 

 

Energy Special Improvement Districts (E-SIDs) and Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) 

MORPC Team Members reviewed SB 185, sponsored by Senator Seitz, which streamlines the 

process for utilizing PACE through energy special improvement districts. It also includes the benefit 

of a regional PACE district that can attain shared services across political jurisdictions. The bill is 

being considered with a Hearing by the Senate Committee on Energy & Natural Resources.  

 

Sustainability Advisory Committee 

The work of the Committee and its working groups will be showcased during the Summit on 

Sustainability, October 2, 2015. The next meeting will be held October 20, 2015 and includes 

discussion on the Clean Power Plan through the work of the Energy & Air Quality working group.  

 

Administration 

Shawn Hufstedler – shufstedler@morpc.org 

The annual budget and the indirect cost allocation plan (ICAP) for 2016 are being prepared. The ICAP 

is expected to be submitted to the State for approval in the first half of November and the budget will 

be presented for Commission approval in December. 

 

Human Resources 

Deborah Murphy – dmurphy@morpc.org 

 

Open Positions Update  

MORPC Team members are scheduling the second round of interviews for an Energy Auditor. 

Additionally, Team Members are receiving and reviewing resumes for an HVAC Technician. 

 

Information Technology 

The agency is going through an IT assessment of our IT structure and capabilities.  

 

  

file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/shufstedler@morpc.org
file:///C:/Users/ssaunders/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/Temporary%20Internet%20Files/Content.Outlook/SWF0E07B/dmurphy@morpc.org


10 
 

ATTACHMENT 

Membership Report 

MORPC welcomed the Village of New Lexington (Perry County) as a new local government member. 

Councilman Alan G. Vandewater will serve as the Village’s representative on the MORPC Board. 

Eleven new commission members attended the “New Member Orientation” which took place before 

the September Commission meeting.  

Seventeen participants attended MORPC’s Membership Township event September 29, 2015. The 

workshop program featured a keynote presentation by Jill Tangeman, a partner at Vorys, Sater, 

Seymour and Pease law firm, about tools for effective building and property code management. Ms. 

Tangeman is a certified specialist in business, commercial and industrial real property law.  

 

The MORPC 2016 Local Government Internship Program details and cost are finalized and will be 

shared with local government members. The new program for 2016 includes additional majors to 

align with local government needs. For questions or more information, contact Membership 

Coordinator Eileen Leuby at eleuby@morpc.org or 614-233-4135. 

 

MORPC Team Members visited the following local government members: City of Groveport, Village of 

West Jefferson, Prairie Township, and Violet Township.  

 

MORPC Team Members attended the following members’ events: Ross County presentation on the 

options for forming a Joint Economic Development District hosted by the Alliance for Economic 

Development and the Annual Meeting of the Franklin Soil and Water Conservation District. 

 

MORPC in the News 

 Business First - Central Ohio's most-dangerous intersections 

 The Columbus Dispatch - Central Ohio's most-dangerous intersections 

 Channel 10 - Central Ohio's most-dangerous intersections 

 614 Now - List of the most dangerous intersections in Central Ohio 

 This Week Community News/Dublin Villager - Why two major construction projects occurring at 

same time? 

 Columbus Underground - Hamilton Road & Livingston Avenue Tops List of High Crash 

Intersections  

 Columbus Underground - Commuters Have Doubled in Columbus in Past 25 Years 

 NBC4 – Group ranks most dangerous intersections 

 The Columbus Dispatch – Good problem to have 

 This Week Community News/Dublin Villager – Hard and Sawmill in Central Ohio’s Top 10 

 Akron Legal News – House Panel oks bill promoting alternative fuel 

 National Association of Regional Councils/Regions Brief – Local Government Internship Program 

Impactful for Students 

 NBC4 - Ozone levels neared alert status, with added smoke particles in Central Ohio 

 Lancaster Eagle Gazette – St. John Lutheran Church to hold celebration 

 This Week Community News/Olentangy Valley News – Road near Columbus Zoo soon will grow to 

five lanes 

 Mass Transit - Rickenbacker-Area Shuttle Service to Launch Sept. 28 

 Business First - New COTA service aimed at workers at Cardinal Health, Gap and other 

Rickenbacker logistics park employers 

 The Columbus Dispatch - Rickenbacker shuttles start today  

 

Press Releases 

 The Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission Receives Auditor of State Award with Distinction 

 Village of New Lexington (Perry County) joins the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

mailto:eleuby@morpc.org


11 
 

 MORPC Releases Top 40 High Crash Intersections 

 Summit Workshops Feature Central Ohio’s Energy Future 

 Lunch Panel to address Central Ohio’s Energy Future at MORPC’s 2015 Summit on Sustainability   

 State Leaders address Energy Policies and Sustainability Issues at MORPC’s 2015 Summit on 

Sustainability 

 

Website Activity 

MORPC’s online/social media efforts for September provided the following results: 

 MORPC’s Facebook received approximately 35 new page likes over the month, with 3,267 page 

likes to date. This gain is roughly consistent with the previous months (typically 35-40). 

 MORPC had roughly 60 Facebook posts during the month. 

 People were most engaged with the MORPC Facebook page on September 1, 2015, when a link 

to the Dispatch article on “Central Ohio’s most dangerous intersections” was posted. This 

reached 1.6K people. The second most popular post was the link to “Columbus home to 

Midwest’s best employment growth.” This reached over 1.4K people.  

 Seven posts reached over 1,000 people throughout the course of the month. 

 MORPC produced more than 70 tweets during the month (an increase of 7.7% over last month), 

with 21.1K impressions. 

 482 people visited our Twitter profile, and our mentions went up 150% over the previous month. 

 MORPC received 32 new Twitter followers, bringing our total to 2,591. 

 Top tweet MORPC was mentioned in was from 614 Magazine on the most dangerous 

intersections. 

 Instagram posts during the month include Grove City’s Distracted and Impaired Driving 

Simulator, Patriot Day, Bike & Pedestrian Counts, and the Combined Charitable Campaign 

kickoff. The Instagram account now has 280 followers. 

 



 

Memorandum 

 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Administrative Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Nancy Reger, Director 

Regional Data & Mapping 

 

DATE: 

 

October 2, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 15-15: "ESTABLISHING POPULATION ESTIMATES 

AS A BASIS FOR 2016 ANNUAL PARTICIPATION FEES TO BE ASSESSED 

MEMBERS" 

 

The attached resolution provides population estimates for January 1, 2016 for the 

purpose of assessing participation fees from member jurisdictions. The member 

participation fees (“dues”) are calculated using the rates adopted in Resolution 11-

15. 

 

New Members added to MORPC in 2015 include the Villages of Galena, Sunbury, 

Somerset and New Lexington; and two townships, Liberty Township in Delaware 

County and Greenfield Township in Fairfield County.  

 

The population estimates were developed by applying person per household rates to 

new residential construction that occurred during the past year.  

 

The 2016 population estimate of MORPC membership is 1,648,869, an increase of 

25,944 people from last year.   Excluding population from new members Greenfield 

Township, Somerset and New Lexington that are completely new to the MORPC 

membership area (Galena, Sunbury and Liberty Township in Delaware County were 

included as part the Delaware County population last year), the growth rate was 

14,516 people, approximately 0.89 percent. This growth was slightly higher than that 

of 2015. Approximately 5,604 housing units were added, again, comparable to last 

year’s increase.  

 

However, contrary to last year, the mix of new housing included more multi-family 

than single family units (3,518: 2,086).  Last year, more single family units were 

constructed than multi-family units. We expect this trend to continue as more multi-

family units currently under construction come on line for the 2017 estimates.  

 

 

Attachment:  Resolution 15-15 



   

 RESOLUTION 15-15 

 

“ESTABLISHING POPULATION ESTIMATES AS A BASIS FOR 2016 ANNUAL PARTICIPATION FEES TO BE 

ASSESSED MEMBERS” 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC staff has developed January 1, 2016 population estimates to provide a basis for 

local dues assessments, as per the Articles of Agreement; and 

 

WHEREAS, 2016 participation fees are assessed at a rate of $0.515 per capita for members within 

the federally declared Transportation Study Area boundaries of MORPC and $0.325 for members not 

located within the Transportation Study Area, in accordance with Resolution 11-15; and  

 

WHEREAS, $0.035 per capita is earmarked exclusively for the MORPC office building, in accordance 

with Resolution 11-15; and 

 

WHEREAS, Attachment 1 describes the methodology used in making the population estimates and 

Attachment 2 sets forth the population and dues assessments for MORPC members; now therefore, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the January 1, 2016 population estimates, as documented in Attachment 2, are 

hereby adopted for the purpose of assessing 2016 participation fees, as listed on 

Attachment 2. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 3. That this Commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and actions 

of this Commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this resolution were 

taken in open meetings of this Commission. 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date:  October 8, 2015 

Submitted by:  Nancy Reger, Director, Data & Mapping 

Prepared by:  Nancy Reger, Director, Data & Mapping 

Authority:  Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For action date: October 8, 2015 

 

Attachments: 1. Methodology for the 2016 Population Estimates 

2. 2016 Population Estimates and Dues Assessment of MORPC Members 

    

 



Resolution 15-15 

Attachment 1 

 

 

 

Methodology for the 2016  

Population Estimates, Household Estimates, and Dues Assessments 

for MORPC Member Communities 
 

 

 

Annually, MORPC prepares population and household estimates for the purpose of assessing 

membership dues. These estimates are predictions of the number of people and households in each 

member community on January 1, 2016. 

 

The 2015 MORPC population estimates are the basis for preparing the 2016 estimates. The 

estimates were calculated by applying household rates to new residential units. Building or zoning 

permit reports are collected from each member community to determine the number of single unit 

housing units permitted in each community from October 2014 through June 2015 (which are then 

extrapolated to include months July-September); and multi-family units permits that were issued 

from April 2014 through March 2015.   These time periods assume a three month construction 

period for single family permits, and a nine month construction period for multi-family units.  

 

Reduction factors including a five (5) percent “not built” and the vacancy rate from the 2010 census 

were applied to the number of building permits to determine the estimate of new occupied 

households. Person per household sizes reported in the 2010 census were used to calculate new 

population based on the new housing starts.  

 

Foreclosure instances are not included in the population estimating processes. Although the 

locations of foreclosed units are available, the locations of the residents in those homes are not. 

While residents might not live at the same address they once did, there is no comprehensive 

information regarding whether they have moved from the jurisdiction.  

 

Population estimates for communities in Delaware County, with the exception of the Cities of 

Columbus, Delaware, Dublin and Westerville were provided by the Delaware County Regional 

Planning Commission. 

 

 



Resolution 15-15

Attachment 2

DRAFT 2016 Member Population Estimates and Dues Statement 

Member County

Gov't 

Type

2016 

Population

2015 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2015-2016

2016 

Households 

2015 

Households 

Change in 

Households 

2015-2016

Member 

Type 2016 Dues 2015 Dues

Change in 

Dues 2015-

2016

2016 

Dues 

Rate

2015 

Dues 

Rate

CITY MEMBERS

Bexley Franklin City 13,074 13,074 0 4,667 4,667 0 MPO $6,798 $6,602 $196 $0.520 $0.505

Canal Winchester Fairfield City 1,142 822 320 363 272 91 $594 $415 $179 $0.520 $0.505

Canal Winchester Franklin city 6,608 6,563 45 2,494 2,477 17 $3,436 $3,314 $122 $0.520 $0.505

Canal Winchester Total City 7,750 7,385 365 2,857 2,749 108 MPO $4,030 $3,729 $301

Columbus Delaware City 8,590 8,063 527 3,903 3,636 267 $4,467 $4,072 $395 $0.520 $0.505

Columbus Fairfield City 9,713 9,709 4 3,519 3,518 1 $5,051 $4,903 $148 $0.520 $0.505

Columbus Franklin City 800,609 792,428 8,181 338,007 334,387 3,620 $416,317 $400,176 $16,141 $0.520 $0.505

Columbus Total City 818,912 810,200 8,712 345,429 341,541 3,888 MPO $425,834 $409,151 $16,683

Delaware Delaware City 36,263 35,885 378 13,799 13,657 142 MPO $18,857 $18,122 $735 $0.520 $0.505

Dublin Delaware City 4,165 4,094 71 1,478 1,453 25 $2,166 $2,067 $98 $0.520 $0.505

Dublin Franklin City 37,061 36,971 90 13,478 13,445 33 $19,272 $18,670 $601 $0.520 $0.505

Dublin Union City 3,415 3,310 105 1,012 982 30 $1,776 $1,672 $104 $0.520 $0.505

Dublin Total City 44,641 44,375 266 15,968 15,880 88 MPO $23,213 $22,409 $804

Gahanna Franklin City 33,382 33,359 23 13,085 13,076 9 MPO $17,359 $16,846 $512 $0.520 $0.505

Grandview Heights Franklin City 6,859 6,845 14 3,080 3,075 5 MPO $3,567 $3,457 $110 $0.520 $0.505

Grove City Franklin City 36,720 36,459 261 14,376 14,278 98 MPO $19,094 $18,412 $683 $0.520 $0.505

Groveport Franklin City 5,604 5,597 7 2,189 2,187 2 MPO $2,914 $2,826 $88 $0.520 $0.505

Hilliard Franklin City 29,331 28,952 379 10,847 10,709 138 MPO $15,252 $14,621 $631 $0.520 $0.505

Marysville Union City 23,023 22,765 258 7,660 7,568 92 Non-MPO $7,482 $7,057 $425 $0.325 $0.310

New Albany Franklin City 9,077 8,929 148 2,813 2,767 46 $4,720 $4,509 $211 $0.520 $0.505

New Albany Licking City 24 24 0 11 11 0 $12 $12 $0 $0.520 $0.505

New Albany Total City 9,101 8,953 148 2,824 2,778 46 MPO $4,733 $4,521 $211

Pataskala Licking City 15,508 15,392 116 5,788 5,745 43 MPO $8,064 $7,773 $291 $0.520 $0.505

Pickerington Fairfield City 19,385 19,193 192 6,571 6,509 62 $10,080 $9,692 $388 $0.520 $0.505

Pickerington Franklin City 123 123 0 35 35 0 $64 $62 $2 $0.520 $0.505

Pickerington Total City 19,508 19,316 192 6,606 6,544 62 MPO $10,144 $9,755 $390

Powell Delaware City 12,983 12,660 323 4,076 4,022 54 MPO $6,751 $6,393 $358 $0.520 $0.505

Reynoldsburg Fairfield City 918 918 0 485 485 0 $477 $464 $14 $0.520 $0.505

Reynoldsburg Franklin City 26,315 26,232 83 10,930 10,895 35 $13,684 $13,247 $437 $0.520 $0.505

Reynoldsburg Licking City 8,952 8,952 0 3,089 3,089 0 $4,655 $4,521 $134 $0.520 $0.505

Reynoldsburg Total 36,185 36,102 83 14,504 14,469 35 MPO $18,816 $18,232 $585

Upper Arlington Franklin City 33,976 33,964 12 13,838 13,832 6 MPO $17,668 $17,152 $516 $0.520 $0.505

Westerville Delaware City 7,916 7,916 0 3,017 3,017 0 $4,116 $3,998 $119 $0.520 $0.505

Westerville Franklin City 29,356 29,002 354 11,318 11,157 161 $15,265 $14,646 $619 $0.520 $0.505

Westerville Total City 37,272 36,918 354 14,335 14,174 161 MPO $19,381 $18,644 $738



Member County

Gov't 

Type

2016 

Population

2015 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2015-2016

2016 

Households 

2015 

Households 

Change in 

Households 

2015-2016

Member 

Type 2016 Dues 2015 Dues

Change in 

Dues 2015-

2016

2016 

Dues 

Rate

2015 

Dues 

Rate

Whitehall Franklin City 18,091 18,091 0 7,540 7,540 0 MPO $9,407 $9,136 $271 $0.520 $0.505

Worthington Franklin City 13,596 13,596 0 5,697 5,697 0 MPO $7,070 $6,866 $204 $0.520 $0.505

VILLAGE MEMBERS

Galena (1) Delaware Village 763 248 MPO $800 $0 $800 $0.520 $0.505

Shawnee Hills Delaware Village 765 745 20 291 288 3 MPO $800 $800 $0 $0.520 $0.505

Sunbury (1) Delaware Village 5,022 1,767 MPO $2,611 $0 $2,611 $0.520 $0.505

Lithopolis Fairfield Village 1,185 1,185 0 475 475 0 MPO $616 $598 $18 $0.520 $0.505

Lithopolis Franklin Village 65 65 0 24 24 0 MPO $34 $33 $1 $0.520 $0.505

Lithopolis  Total Village 1,250 1,250 0 499 499 0 MPO $800 $800 $0 $0.520 $0.505

Brice Franklin Village 114 114 0 41 41 0 MPO $800 $800 $0 $0.520 $0.505

Harrisburg Franklin Village 320 320 0 138 138 0 MPO $800 $800 $0 $0.520 $0.505

Lockbourne Franklin Village 237 237 0 95 95 0 MPO $800 $800 $0 $0.520 $0.505

Marble Cliff Franklin Village 573 573 0 292 292 0 MPO $800 $800 $0 $0.520 $0.505

Minerva Park Franklin Village 1,272 1,272 0 538 538 0 MPO $800 $800 $0 $0.520 $0.505

Obetz Franklin Village 4,591 4,591 0 1,690 1,690 0 MPO $2,387 $2,318 $69 $0.520 $0.505

Riverlea Franklin Village 548 548 0 222 222 0 MPO $800 $800 $0 $0.520 $0.505

Urbancrest Franklin Village 960 960 0 337 337 0 MPO $800 $800 $0 $0.505 $0.505

Johnstown Licking Village 4,944 4,944 0 1,935 1,935 0 Non-MPO $1,607 $1,533 $74 $0.325 $0.310

West Jefferson Madison Village 4,229 4,226 3 1,617 1,615 2 Non-MPO $1,374 $1,310 $64 $0.325 $0.310

New Lexington (1) Perry Village 4,768 4,768 1,838 1,838 Non-MPO $1,550 $1,550 $0.325

Somerset (1) Perry Village 1,466 1,466 613 613 Non-MPO $800 $800 $0.325

Ashville Pickaway Village 4,104 4,104 0 1,601 1,601 0 Non-MPO $1,334 $1,272 $62 $0.325 $0.310

TOWNSHIP MEMBERS

Liberty (1) Delaware Township 16,212 5,591 MPO $8,430 $8,430 $0.520

Bloom Fairfield Township 7,136 7,124 12 2,534 2,530 4 MPO $3,711 $3,598 $113 $0.520 $0.505

Greenfield (1) Fairfield Township 5,194 5,194 1,887 1,887 Non-MPO $1,688 $0 $1,688 $0.325

Violet Fairfield Township 19,420 19,349 71 6,611 6,586 25 MPO $10,098 $9,771 $327 $0.520 $0.505

Blendon Franklin Township 7,808 7,808 0 2,874 2,874 0 MPO $4,060 $3,943 $117 $0.520 $0.505

Clinton Franklin Township 4,109 4,109 0 1,896 1,896 0 MPO $2,137 $2,075 $62 $0.520 $0.505

Madison Franklin Township 10,807 10,800 7 3,985 3,982 3 MPO $5,620 $5,454 $166 $0.520 $0.505

Mifflin Franklin Township 2,466 2,462 4 940 939 1 MPO $1,282 $1,243 $39 $0.520 $0.505

Perry Franklin Township 3,641 3,641 0 1,338 1,338 0 MPO $1,893 $1,839 $55 $0.520 $0.505

Plain Franklin Township 2,142 2,142 0 862 862 0 MPO $1,114 $1,082 $32 $0.520 $0.505

Prairie Franklin Township 16,505 16,498 7 6,339 6,336 3 MPO $8,583 $8,331 $0 $0.520 $0.505



Member County

Gov't 

Type

2016 

Population

2015 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2015-2016

2016 

Households 

2015 

Households 

Change in 

Households 

2015-2016

Member 

Type 2016 Dues 2015 Dues

Change in 

Dues 2015-

2016

2016 

Dues 

Rate

2015 

Dues 

Rate

Etna Licking Township 8,847 8,723 124 3,314 3,268 46 MPO $4,600 $4,405 $0 $0.520 $0.505

Granville Licking Township 4,225 4,190 35 1,560 1,547 13 Non-MPO $1,373 $1,299 $0 $0.325 $0.310

Jerome Union Township 5,844 5,407 437 1,909 1,760 149 MPO $3,039 $2,731 $0 $0.520 $0.505

COUNTY MEMBERS

Delaware County (2) County Total 190,141 187,277 2,864 66,694 65,939 755 MPO $66,152 $63,388 $2,764

City Total (10% population dues) 69,917 68,618 1,299 26,273 25,785 488 MPO $3,636 $3,465 $170

    Columbus Delaware City 8,590 8,063 527 3,903 3,636 267 MPO $447 $407 $39 $0.520 $0.505

    Delaware Delaware City 36,263 35,885 378 13,799 13,657 142 MPO $1,886 $1,812 $73 $0.520 $0.505

    Dublin (10% population in dues) Delaware City 4,165 4,094 71 1,478 1,453 25 MPO $217 $207 $10 $0.520 $0.505

    Powell (10% population in dues) Delaware City 12,983 12,660 323 4,076 4,022 54 MPO $675 $639 $36 $0.520 $0.505

    Westerville (10% population in dues) Delaware City 7,916 7,916 0 3,017 3,017 0 MPO $412 $400 $12 $0.520 $0.505

Village Total (100% population in dues) City 8,730 8,566 164 3,081 3,077 4 MPO $4,540 $4,326 $214

    Ashley Delaware Village 1,345 1,345 0 506 506 0 MPO $699 $679 $20 $0.520 $0.505

    Galena Delaware Village 763 747 16 248 247 1 MPO $397 $377 $20 $0.520 $0.505

    Ostrander Delaware Village 835 801 34 269 269 0 MPO $434 $405 $30 $0.520 $0.505

    Shawnee Hills Delaware Village 765 745 20 291 288 3 MPO $398 $376 $22 $0.520 $0.505

    Sunbury Delaware Village 5,022 4,928 94 1,767 1,767 0 MPO $2,611 $2,489 $123 $0.520 $0.505

Township Total (100% population in dues) Village 111,494 110,093 1,401 37,340 37,077 263 MPO $57,977 $55,597 $2,380

    Berkshire Delaware Township 2,935 2,760 175 1,012 970 42 MPO $1,526 $1,394 $132 $0.520 $0.505

    Berlin Delaware Township 7,137 7,064 73 2,170 2,152 18 MPO $3,711 $3,567 $144 $0.520 $0.505

    Brown Delaware Township 1,470 1,456 14 544 543 1 MPO $764 $735 $29 $0.520 $0.505

    Concord Delaware Township 10,546 10,454 92 3,416 3,393 23 MPO $5,484 $5,279 $205 $0.520 $0.505

    Delaware Delaware Township 2,059 2,055 4 778 778 0 MPO $1,071 $1,038 $33 $0.520 $0.505

    Genoa Delaware Township 25,184 25,055 129 8,054 8,024 30 MPO $13,096 $12,653 $443 $0.520 $0.505

    Harlem Delaware Township 4,130 4,096 34 1,530 1,521 9 MPO $2,148 $2,068 $79 $0.520 $0.505

    Kingston Delaware Township 2,255 2,240 15 778 774 4 MPO $1,173 $1,131 $41 $0.520 $0.505

    Liberty Delaware Township 16,212 16,000 212 5,591 5,557 34 MPO $8,430 $8,080 $350 $0.520 $0.505

    Marlboro Delaware Township 289 287 2 108 108 0 MPO $150 $145 $5 $0.520 $0.505

    Orange Delaware Township 27,048 26,491 557 8,864 8,777 87 MPO $14,065 $13,378 $687 $0.520 $0.505

    Oxford Delaware Township 1,008 1,005 3 362 361 1 MPO $524 $508 $17 $0.520 $0.505

    Porter Delaware Township 2,049 2,022 27 724 720 4 MPO $1,065 $1,021 $44 $0.520 $0.505

    Radnor Delaware Township 1,598 1,586 12 587 586 1 MPO $831 $801 $30 $0.520 $0.505

    Scioto Delaware Township 2,460 2,437 23 927 921 6 MPO $1,279 $1,231 $49 $0.520 $0.505

    Thompson Delaware Township 712 710 2 254 254 0 MPO $370 $359 $12 $0.520 $0.505

    Trenton Delaware Township 2,241 2,229 12 798 796 2 MPO $1,165 $1,126 $40 $0.520 $0.505

    Troy Delaware Township 2,161 2,146 15 843 842 1 MPO $1,124 $1,084 $40 $0.520 $0.505

Franklin County (6) County Total 1,202,423 1,192,653 9,770 493,805 489,572 4,233 MPO $110,573 $106,801 $3,772 $0.520 $0.505

City Total (10% population dues) Franklin City 1,099,759 1,090,185 9,574 454,385 450,224 4,161 $57,187 $55,054 $2,133

    Bexley (10% population in dues) Franklin City 13,074 13,074 0 4,667 4,667 0 MPO $680 $660 $20 $0.520 $0.505

    Canal Winchester (10% population in dues) Franklin City 6,585 6,563 22 2,485 2,477 8 MPO $342 $331 $11 $0.520 $0.505

    Columbus (10% population in dues) Franklin City 800,609 792,428 8,181 338,007 334,387 3,620 MPO $41,632 $40,018 $1,614 $0.520 $0.505

    Dublin (10% population in dues) Franklin City 37,061 36,971 90 13,478 13,445 33 MPO $1,927 $1,867 $60 $0.520 $0.505

    Gahanna (10% population in dues) Franklin City 33,382 33,359 23 13,085 13,076 9 MPO $1,736 $1,685 $51 $0.520 $0.505

    Grandview Heights (10% population in dues) Franklin City 6,859 6,845 14 3,080 3,075 5 MPO $357 $346 $11 $0.520 $0.505

    Grove City (10% population in dues) Franklin City 36,720 36,459 261 14,376 14,278 98 MPO $1,909 $1,841 $68 $0.520 $0.505

    Groveport (10% population in dues) Franklin City 5,604 5,597 7 2,189 2,187 2 MPO $291 $283 $9 $0.520 $0.505

    Hilliard (10% population in dues) Franklin City 29,331 28,952 379 10,847 10,709 138 MPO $1,525 $1,462 $63 $0.520 $0.505

    New Albany (10% population in dues) Franklin City 9,077 8,929 148 2,813 2,767 46 MPO $472 $451 $21 $0.520 $0.505



Member County

Gov't 

Type

2016 

Population

2015 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2015-2016

2016 

Households 

2015 

Households 

Change in 

Households 

2015-2016

Member 

Type 2016 Dues 2015 Dues

Change in 

Dues 2015-

2016

2016 

Dues 

Rate

2015 

Dues 

Rate

    Pickerington (10% population in dues) Franklin City 123 123 0 35 35 0 MPO $6 $6 $0 $0.520 $0.505

    Reynoldsburg (10% population in dues) Franklin City 26,315 26,232 83 10,930 10,895 35 MPO $1,368 $1,325 $44 $0.520 $0.505

    Upper Arlington (10% population in dues) Franklin City 33,976 33,964 12 13,838 13,832 6 MPO $1,767 $1,715 $52 $0.520 $0.505

    Westerville (10% population in dues) Franklin City 29,356 29,002 354 11,318 11,157 161 MPO $1,527 $1,465 $62 $0.520 $0.505

    Whitehall (10% population in dues) Franklin City 18,091 18,091 0 7,540 7,540 0 MPO $941 $914 $27 $0.520 $0.505

    Worthington (10% population in dues) Franklin City 13,596 13,596 0 5,697 5,697 0 MPO $707 $687 $20 $0.520 $0.505

Village Total (100 % populaton dues) 9,300 9,300 0 3,623 3,623 0 $4,836 $4,697 $139

    Brice Franklin Village 114 114 0 41 41 0 MPO $59 $58 $2 $0.520 $0.505

    Harrisburg Franklin Village 320 320 0 138 138 0 MPO $166 $162 $5 $0.520 $0.505

    Lithopolis Franklin Village 65 65 0 24 24 0 MPO $34 $33 $1 $0.520 $0.505

    Lockbourne Franklin Village 237 237 0 95 95 0 MPO $123 $120 $4 $0.520 $0.505

    Marble Cliff Franklin Village 573 573 0 292 292 0 MPO $298 $289 $9 $0.520 $0.505

    Minerva Park Franklin Village 1,272 1,272 0 538 538 0 MPO $661 $642 $19 $0.520 $0.505

    Obetz Franklin Village 4,591 4,591 0 1,690 1,690 0 MPO $2,387 $2,318 $69 $0.520 $0.505

    Riverlea Franklin Village 548 548 0 222 222 0 MPO $285 $277 $8 $0.520 $0.505

    Urbancrest Franklin Village 960 960 0 337 337 0 MPO $499 $485 $14 $0.520 $0.505

    Valleyview Franklin Village 620 620 0 246 246 0 MPO $322 $313 $9 $0.520 $0.505

Township Total (100% population dues 93,364 93,168 196 35,797 35,724 72 $48,549 $47,050 $1,499

    Blendon Franklin Township 7,808 7,808 0 2,874 2,874 0 MPO $4,060 $3,943 $117 $0.520 $0.505

    Brown Franklin Township 2,291 2,279 12 795 790 5 MPO $1,191 $1,151 $40 $0.520 $0.505

    Clinton Franklin Township 4,109 4,109 0 1,896 1,896 0 MPO $2,137 $2,075 $62 $0.520 $0.505

    Franklin Franklin Township 9,651 9,651 0 3,754 3,754 0 MPO $5,019 $4,874 $145 $0.520 $0.505

    Hamilton Franklin Township 4,441 4,441 0 1,829 1,829 0 MPO $2,310 $2,243 $67 $0.520 $0.505

    Jackson Franklin Township 4,117 4,110 7 1,558 1,555 3 MPO $2,141 $2,076 $66 $0.520 $0.505

    Jefferson Franklin Township 10,861 10,725 136 3,849 3,801 48 MPO $5,648 $5,416 $232 $0.520 $0.505

    Madison Franklin Township 10,807 10,800 7 3,985 3,982 3 MPO $5,620 $5,454 $166 $0.520 $0.505

    Miffilin Franklin Township 2,466 2,462 4 940 939 1 MPO $1,282 $1,243 $39 $0.520 $0.505

    Norwich Franklin Township 4,002 3,994 8 1,669 1,667 2 MPO $2,081 $2,017 $64 $0.520 $0.505

    Perry Franklin Township 3,641 3,641 0 1,338 1,338 0 MPO $1,893 $1,839 $55 $0.520 $0.505

    Plain Franklin Township 2,142 2,142 0 862 862 0 MPO $1,114 $1,082 $32 $0.520 $0.505

    Pleasant Franklin Township 6,377 6,369 8 2,392 2,389 3 MPO $3,316 $3,216 $100 $0.520 $0.505

    Prairie Franklin Township 16,505 16,498 7 6,339 6,336 3 MPO $8,583 $8,331 $251 $0.520 $0.505

    Sharon Franklin Township 1,852 1,852 0 855 855 0 MPO $963 $935 $28 $0.520 $0.505

    Truro Franklin Township 1,304 1,304 0 474 474 0 MPO $678 $659 $20 $0.520 $0.505

    Washington Franklin Township 990 983 7 386 383 3 MPO $515 $496 $18 $0.520 $0.505

Ross County County Total 78,320 78,263 57 28,998 28,977 21 Non-MPO $19,040 $18,144 $896 $0.325 $0.310

City Total City 21,928 21,928 0 9,416 9,416 0 $713 $680 $33

    Chillicothe (10% population in dues) Ross City 21,928 21,928 0 9,416 9,416 0 Non-MPO $713 $680 $33 $0.325 $0.310

Village Total (100% population in dues) Village 3,995 3,995 0 1,664 1,664 0 Non-MPO $1,298 $1,238 $60

    Adelphi Ross Village 380 380 0 154 154 0 Non-MPO $124 $118 $6 $0.325 $0.310

    Bainbridge Ross Village 860 860 0 357 357 0 Non-MPO $280 $267 $13 $0.325 $0.310

    Clarksburg Ross Village 455 455 0 166 166 0 Non-MPO $148 $141 $7 $0.325 $0.310

    Frankfort Ross Village 1,064 1,064 0 449 449 0 Non-MPO $346 $330 $16 $0.325 $0.310

    Kingston Ross Village 1,032 1,032 0 458 458 0 Non-MPO $335 $320 $15 $0.325 $0.310

    South Salem Ross Village 204 204 0 80 80 0 Non-MPO $66 $63 $3 $0.325 $0.310

Township Total (100% population in dues) Township 52,397 52,340 57 17,918 17,897 21 $17,029 $16,225 $804

    Buckskin Ross Township 1,843 1,835 8 658 655 3 Non-MPO $599 $569 $30 $0.325 $0.310

    Colerain Ross Township 1,774 1,771 3 665 664 1 Non-MPO $577 $549 $28 $0.325 $0.310

    Concord Ross Township 3,436 3,432 4 1,270 1,268 2 Non-MPO $1,117 $1,064 $53 $0.325 $0.310

    Deerfield Ross Township 603 603 0 237 237 0 Non-MPO $196 $187 $9 $0.325 $0.310



Member County

Gov't 

Type

2016 

Population

2015 

Population 

Change in 

Population 

2015-2016

2016 

Households 

2015 

Households 

Change in 

Households 

2015-2016

Member 

Type 2016 Dues 2015 Dues

Change in 

Dues 2015-

2016

2016 

Dues 

Rate

2015 

Dues 

Rate

    Franklin Ross Township 1,712 1,712 0 654 654 0 Non-MPO $556 $531 $26 $0.325 $0.310

    Green Ross Township 3,907 3,896 11 1,483 1,479 4 Non-MPO $1,270 $1,208 $62 $0.325 $0.310

    Harrison Ross Township 1,324 1,324 0 514 514 0 Non-MPO $430 $410 $20 $0.325 $0.310

    Huntington Ross Township 6,256 6,245 11 2,282 2,278 4 Non-MPO $2,033 $1,936 $97 $0.325 $0.310

    Jefferson Ross Township 1,001 1,001 0 394 394 0 Non-MPO $325 $310 $15 $0.325 $0.310

    Liberty Ross Township 2,643 2,639 4 1,040 1,038 2 Non-MPO $859 $818 $41 $0.325 $0.310

    Paint Ross Township 1,365 1,365 0 536 536 0 Non-MPO $444 $423 $21 $0.325 $0.310

    Paxton Ross Township 1,256 1,256 0 474 474 0 Non-MPO $408 $389 $19 $0.325 $0.310

    Scioto Ross Township 5,843 5,836 7 2,440 2,437 3 Non-MPO $1,899 $1,809 $90 $0.325 $0.310

    Springfield Ross Township 2,669 2,661 8 1,078 1,075 3 Non-MPO $867 $825 $42 $0.325 $0.310

    Twin Ross Township 3,404 3,404 0 1,290 1,290 0 Non-MPO $1,106 $1,055 $51 $0.325 $0.310

    Union Ross Township 13,360 13,360 0 2,904 2,904 0 Non-MPO $4,342 $4,142 $200 $0.325 $0.310

Union County (4) County Total 56,802 55,877 925 19,461 19,145 316 Non-MPO $11,934 $11,166 $768 $0.325 $0.310

City Total (10% population in dues) City 26,438 26,075 363 8,672 8,550 122 $926 $873 $53

    Dublin (10% population in dues) Union City 3,415 3,310 105 1,012 982 30 MPO $178 $167 $10 $0.520 $0.505

    Marysville (10% population in dues) Union City 23,023 22,765 258 7,660 7,568 92 Non-MPO $748 $706 $43 $0.325 $0.310

Village Total (100% population in dues) Village 4,510 4,510 0 1,757 1,757 0 $1,466 $1,398 $68

    Magnetic Springs Union Village 254 254 0 110 110 0 Non-MPO $83 $79 $4 $0.325 $0.310

    Milford Center Union Village 834 834 0 303 303 0 Non-MPO $271 $259 $13 $0.325 $0.310

    Plain City Union Village 938 938 0 383 383 0 Non-MPO $305 $291 $14 $0.325 $0.310

    Richwood Union Village 2,258 2,258 0 883 883 0 Non-MPO $734 $700 $34 $0.325 $0.310

    Unionville Center Union Village 226 226 0 78 78 0 Non-MPO $73 $70 $3 $0.325 $0.310

Township Total (100% populaton in dues) Township 25,854 25,292 562 9,032 8,838 194 $9,542 $8,895 $647

    Allen Union Township 2,452 2,439 13 773 769 4 Non-MPO $797 $756 $41 $0.325 $0.310

    Claibourne Union Township 1,317 1,305 12 480 476 4 Non-MPO $428 $405 $23 $0.325 $0.310

    Darby Union Township 1,970 1,931 39 697 683 14 Non-MPO $640 $599 $42 $0.325 $0.310

    Dover Union Township 2,148 2,136 12 807 802 5 Non-MPO $698 $662 $36 $0.325 $0.310

    Jackson Union Township 991 991 0 346 346 0 Non-MPO $322 $307 $15 $0.325 $0.310

    Jerome Union Township 5,844 5,407 437 1,909 1,760 149 MPO $3,039 $2,731 $308 $0.520 $0.505

    Leesburg Union Township 1,158 1,155 3 428 427 1 Non-MPO $377 $358 $18 $0.325 $0.310

    Liberty Union Township 2,044 2,031 13 682 678 4 Non-MPO $664 $630 $35 $0.325 $0.310

    Millcreek Union Township 1,340 1,336 4 502 500 2 Non-MPO $435 $414 $21 $0.325 $0.310

    Paris Union Township 1,741 1,730 11 649 645 4 Non-MPO $566 $536 $30 $0.325 $0.310

    Taylor Union Township 1,600 1,600 0 571 571 0 Non-MPO $520 $496 $24 $0.325 $0.310

    Union Union Township 1,003 999 4 370 368 2 Non-MPO $326 $310 $16 $0.325 $0.310

    Washington Union Township 850 846 4 314 313 1 Non-MPO $276 $262 $14 $0.325 $0.310

    York Union Township 1,397 1,386 11 504 500 4 Non-MPO $454 $430 $24 $0.325 $0.310

MORPC TOTAL 1,648,869 1,622,925 25,944 652,777 642,819 9,958 $905,049 $885,437 $19,613

25,944 9,959

14,516 5,621

0.89% 0.87%

(1) New Member in 2015

(2) Population for Delaware County communities, except for Delaware City and portions of Columbus, Dublin and Westerville inside Delaware County are prepared by the Delaware County Regional Planning Commisison



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

Executive Committee 

Officers and Board Members 

 

FROM: 

 

Kerstin Car, Director Planning & Environment 

Laura Koprowski, Director Public & Government Affairs 

 

DATE: 

 

October 2, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution 16-15: "AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO FILE APPLICATIONS WITH, EXECUTE AGREEMENTS 

WITH, AND RECEIVE FUNDS FROM THE OSTEOPATHIC HERITAGE 

FOUNDATION AND OTHERS FOR A PROJECT CALLED AGE-

FRIENDLY COLUMBUS" 

 
 

Resolution 16-15 authorizes the Executive Director to submit an application to 

execute agreements with, and accept funds from the Osteopathic Heritage 

Foundation and other entities to fund the first two years of a project called "Age-

friendly Columbus". The cost of the project for the first two years is expected to be up 

to $600,000. It is expected that the project will begin in January 2016. 

 

As insight2050 indicates, the region's population of 65 years or older is expected to 

double over the next 35 years. We are approaching a time when older adults will 

make up nearly 20% of our population. As our communities are working to revitalize 

their downtowns and neighborhoods, it is imperative to take age-friendly 

development steps to ensure older adults can remain in their own environments and 

live an active and safe lifestyle. 

 

The World Health Organization has created a framework to evaluate a city's 

accessibility and create a plan for on-going work to obtain and sustain an Age-

Friendly Certification. The World Health Organization utilizes state AARP offices as the 

clearinghouse for local support and direction to the applicants. MORPC will work 

closely within that framework and in partnership with AARP, City of Columbus, 

Franklin County, the Osteopathic Heritage Foundation, and others on the project. 

 

The project is to assess the age-friendliness of the City of Columbus through the lens 

of eight domains as identified in the AARP Age-Friendly Community Guide. These 

eight domains are related to the social, service, and built environment. Based on the 

findings of the assessment, MORPC will develop a 3-year action plan, along with 

metrics to monitor the success, to ensure that the City embraces age-friendliness as  

 



 

 

Resolution 16-15 

Memo 

Page 2 

 

 

a core responsibility for all municipal departments. It is MORPC's intent to write the 

action plan in such a way that it includes both site and service specific action items 

to the case study area as well as recommendations that are policy-based and 

applicable to other communities around the region. The action plan will also be 

created so that it is connected to the insight2050 tools, goals, strategy and analysis.  

 

MORPC will create a new, full-time staff position to serve as the project manager and 

liaison between MORPC and its project partners. The project will be supported by 

both the Director of Planning & Environment and Director of Public & Government 

Affairs.  

  

Attachment:  Resolution 16-15 

 



RESOLUTION 16-15 

 

“AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO FILE APPLICATIONS WITH, EXECUTE 

AGREEMENTS WITH, AND RECEIVE FUNDS FROM THE OSTEOPATHIC HERITAGE FOUNDATION 

AND OTHERS FOR A PROJECT CALLED AGE-FRIENDLY COLUMBUS” 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC’s executive director intends to submit an application to and accept funds 

from the Osteopathic Heritage Foundation and other entities to fund the first two years of a 

project called "Age-friendly Columbus"; and 

 

WHEREAS, the cost of the project for the first two years is expected to be up to $600,000; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this project is to assess the age-friendliness of the City of 

Columbus and to develop a 3-year action plan based on the findings of the assessment; and  

 

WHEREAS, the World Health Organization has created a framework to evaluate a city's 

accessibility and create a plan for on-going work to obtain and sustain an Age-Friendly 

Certification; and 

 

WHEREAS, the World Health Organization utilizes state AARP offices as the clearinghouse for 

local support and direction to the applicants; and 

 

WHEREAS, the project is supported by the findings of insight2050 that the Central Ohio 

population of 65 years or older will double over the next 35 years; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC was encouraged to be the lead agency for this project by the Central Ohio 

Area Agency on Aging, the Franklin County Office on Aging, and other potential funders; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC will utilize the project findings and action plan to inform its regional 

planning and program work as well as share with all of its local government members to find 

areas of collaboration; now therefore  

 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to submit an application and enter 

into agreement with the Osteopathic Heritage Foundation and others to 

implement an "Age-friendly Columbus" project expected to cost up to 

$600,000 over the first two years. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to approve one or more extensions 

of time for performance of services under the foregoing agreements and 

contract changes in accordance with MORPC’s procurement procedures 

without further authorization from this commission. 

 

Section 3.  That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and 

execute and deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal 

counsel, he shall deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of 

this resolution. 

 

 



Resolution 16-15 

Page 2 

 
Section 4. That this commission finds and determines that all formal deliberations and 

actions of this commission concerning and relating to the adoption of this 

resolution were taken in open meetings of this commission. 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Eric S. Phillips, Chair    

 MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

Effective date: October 8, 2015 

Submitted by: Kerstin Carr, Director of Planning and Environment 

Prepared by: Planning and Environment Department 

Authority: Ohio Revised Code Section 713.21 

For Action Date: October 8, 2015 

 

 



Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

Meeting Minutes 

 

 

Thursday, September 10, 2015 

2:40 p.m. 
Transportation Policy Committee Members 

Karen Angelou 

Trudy Bartley 

Chris Bauserman 

Jeff Benton 

Randy Bowman 

Brandi Braun 

Marilyn Brown 

Andrew Brush 

Greg Butcher 

Steve Campbell 

Derrick Clay 

Ben Collins 

Karl Craven 

Michael Ebert 

Shyra Eichhorn 

John Eisel 

Matt Greeson 

Tracy Hatmaker 

Dan Havener 

Tom Homan 

Larry Jenkins 

Steve Kennedy 

Ben Kessler 

Benjamin King 

Bill LaFayette 

Rich Lehmuth 

Barb Lewis 

Kim Maggard 

Glenn Marzluf 

Holly Mattei 

Rory McGuiness 

Gary Merrell 

Robert Myers 

Megan O’Callaghan 

David Paul 

Rob Platte 

Hannah Reed 

Bryan Rhoads 

Dean Ringle 

Allen Rothermel for Scott  

  Weatherby 

Michael Schadek 

Jim Schimmer 

Elissa Schneider 

Don Schonhardt 

Ashley Senn 

Thom Slack 

Ike Stage 

Curtis Stitt 

Scott Tourville 

Bill Vance 

Nancy White

Commission Members 

Terry Emery Eric Richter Alan Vandewater 

 

Associate Members 

Tom Goodney 

Tim Moloney 

Kyle O’Keefe for Ty Marsh 

Nikki Scarpitti 

 

Staff 

Bernice Cage 

Kerstin Carr 

Mark Crosten 

Joe Garrity 

Nick Gill 

Shawn Hufstedler 

Ciel Klein 

Laura Koprowski 

Eileen Leuby 

William Murdock 

Deborah Murphy 

Christina O’Keeffe 

Nancy Reger 

Shari Saunders 

Maria Schaper 

Bevan Schneck 

Thea Walsh 

 

Guests 

Brent Bogard, ODOT 

Sgt. Rick Hardy, Grove City Police 

Mike Hochron, Franklin County BOC 

Dave Holstein, ODOT 

Cornell Robertson, FCEO 

 

Acting Chair Matt Greeson called the Transportation Policy Committee Meeting to order at 2:40 p.m. 

 

Freeway Traffic Management Study – David Holstein, Ohio Department of Transportation, Office of Roadway 

Engineering Office Administrator 

David Holstein gave an update on ODOT’s Active Traffic and Demand Management (ATDM) Study. ODOT is 

looking for alternate ways, other than adding lanes, to increase freeway capacity. The study looked statewide 

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/09-10-2015%20ODOT%20ATDM%20Commission.pdf


Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

September 10, 2015 

Page 2 

 
for potential applications for ATDM. One option is to open the shoulder for traffic during rush hour. ODOT is 

trying to refine the work that would be involved in order to get better implementation cost estimates. If ODOT 

decides to do a pilot project in Columbus, ODOT would come to MORPC for support.  

 

Questions and answers included: 

 Is there a mechanism to handle breakdowns on the shoulder? The current Freeway Service Patrol 

would be re-tasked to be more observant, perhaps have stand-by towing contracts. In reality, traffic 

already backs-up when there is a breakdown.  

 Would both shoulders be open to traffic? Only one shoulder would be open. ODOT is currently favoring 

the inside shoulder.  

 Are the roads structurally adequate? That is one of the details ODOT needs to narrow down.  

 COTA has an exclusive right to the shoulder now; will there be restrictions on who can use the lanes, 

such as HOV vs. single-occupancy? Yes, that is a consideration and other policy issues will be 

addressed. Almost everybody restricts semi-trucks from shoulder use. The COTA buses are only 

allowed to use the shoulders when the speed is below 35 mph. The goal of this is to keep the speed 

on the freeway above 35 mph, so hopefully COTA would benefit from this as well. 

 Where is the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) with this? The FHWA realizes that the federal 

transportation bill cannot fund all the needs out there and is onboard. 

 

Metropolitan Planning Organization Report  

 Transportation Systems & Funding – Thea Walsh, Director 

MORPC team members are evaluating the four Transportation Review and Advisory Council (TRAC) 

applications that were submitted through ODOT District 6 for our MPO planning area: 

o I-70 East at Brice and I-270, construction 

o I-70 East at Brice and I-270, detail design   

o I-70/I-71, Downtown, construction of overhead bridges 

o I-270 South Outerbelt, construction  

 

Team members will work with the Chamber for consultation and recommendations. Project rankings 

will be presented next month for approval. The region’s recommendations will be presented at the 

October 13, 2015 TRAC meeting. Results will be shared December 10, 2015 and the final TRAC lists 

will be out February 25, 2016. 

 

Ohio Public Works Commission applications for Round 30 SCIP/LTIP projects are due September 14, 

2015. 

 

No comments were received for the 2015 Public Involvement Plan update that was presented to the 

Transportation Policy Committee last month. The resolution adopting the plan is on the consent 

agenda. 

 

 Planning & Environment – Kerstin Carr, Director 

Kerstin Carr gave a presentation on High Crash Trends & High Crash Locations reviewing some of the 

regional crash trends over the last five years and annual crash data analysis products, including the 

High-Crash Location lists. The Crash Fact Sheets are available on MORPC’s website. The High Crash 

Locations map shows the top 40 intersections for 2012-2014. It does not include freeway crashes. 

The map indicates that in some areas there might be a corridor problem rather than a specific 

intersection problem. The High Crash Location Lists are also available on MORPC’s website. 

 

The Top 10 Walks in Central Ohio social media competition was developed to build excitement for the 

Summit on Sustainability. Recognizing the top 10 places to walk in our 15-county region ties in well 

with the recently completed sidewalk inventory and speaks to the findings of insight2050. The 

competition ends September 15. The top 10 walks will be announced the week of the Summit.   

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/09-10-2015%20-%20Crash%20Trends%20%20Commission.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/transportation/safety/crash-data/index
http://www.morpc.org/transportation/safety/crash-data/index
http://www.morpc.org/Sustainability/top-10-walks-in-central-ohio/index


Transportation Policy Committee Meeting Minutes 

September 10, 2015 

Page 3 

 
 

Consent Agenda 

Bill Vance made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, second by Marilyn Brown; motion passed. 

 

Proposed Resolution T-15-15: “AMENDING THE STATE FISCAL YEAR (SFY) 2016-2019 TRANSPORTATION 

IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” – Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding Director 

Rob Platte made a motion to approve Resolution T-15-15, second by Kim Maggard; motion passed. 

 

Metropolitan Transportation Plan Update – Thea Walsh, MORPC Transportation Systems & Funding Director 

Thea Walsh presented the Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) Status Update, Strategies & Fiscal 

Constraint. MORPC received nearly 300 new proposed projects and 380 comments as a result of the MTP 

interactive map. Project evaluation is underway. There are 850 projects to be evaluated. 

 

The Transportation Policy Committee Meeting adjourned at 3:04 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Rory McGuiness, Secretary 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission  

http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/09-10-2015%20-%20MTP%20Update%20Commission.pdf
http://www.morpc.org/Assets/MORPC/files/09-10-2015%20-%20MTP%20Update%20Commission.pdf


 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Officers and Board Members 
Transportation Policy Committee 
Transportation Advisory Committee 
Community Advisory Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Thea Walsh, Director 

Transportation Systems & Funding Department 

 

DATE: 

 

October 2, 2015 

SUBJECT: Proposed Resolution T-20-15: “TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE 

DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL 

GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND AND ENTER INTO AN 

AGREEMENT FOR UP TO $50,000 WITH THE OHIO 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGENCY FOR A MULTI-REGIONAL 

RIDESHARING SYSTEM”  
 

On September 14, 2015, MORPC submitted an application for Round 15 of the Local 

Government Innovation Fund (LGIF) administered by the Ohio Development Services 

Agency (ODSA) to establish a Multi-Regional Ridesharing System that will be shared 

with other Metropolitan Planning Organizations' (MPOs') Rideshare agencies in the 

state.  

 

This resolution will be submitted to ODSA during a 10-day CURE period in October. As 

a grant request for an existing work element in MORPC’s State Fiscal Year 2016 

Planning Work Program, sister Resolution EC-6-15 was created for Executive 

Committee approval. Key findings and components of the feasibility study and 

system development include:  

 

1. The development of an RFP for a more efficient multi-regional, ridesharing 

software that can accommodate public-private partnerships and multimodal 

commutes. 

2. Conducting data conversion as necessary and software installation. 

3. The formation of a Transportation Demand Management consortium to unite 

scattered networks of private, public, and non-profit resources (including 

mobility managers and Transportation Management Associations). 

 

MORPC will continue to work with other rideshare agencies and other interested 

parties to develop a cost-effective system that will raise awareness of all ridesharing 

and alternative transportation options that are easy for commuters and 

administrators.    

 



 

 

Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 
Officers and Board Members 
Transportation Policy Committee 
Transportation Advisory Committee 
Community Advisory Committee 

September 24, 2015 

Page 2 

 

 

Resolution T-20-15 authorizes the executive director to submit and execute any 

agreements with ODSA for funding from the LGIF.   

 

 

 

TWJ:MAMF:bsn 

 

Attachment: Resolution T-20-15 



RESOLUTION T-20-15 

 

“TO AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TO SUBMIT AN APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL GOVERN-

MENT INNOVATION FUND AND ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT FOR UP TO $50,000 WITH THE OHIO 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AGENCY FOR A MULTI-REGIONAL RIDESHARING SYSTEM”  

 

WHEREAS, the Local Government Innovation Fund (LGIF), administered by the Ohio Development 

Services Agency, accepted applications on September 14, 2015 for Round 15; and 

  

WHEREAS, several Ohio Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) rideshare agencies currently 

collaborate and partner using outdated ride matching software that needs to be more compatible 

with current technology and other applications; and 

 

WHEREAS, the feasibility study would identify cost-effective web and software needs that will be 

used to better focus and raise awareness of various ridesharing and alternative transportation op-

tions; and 

 

WHEREAS, rideshare agencies would benefit from creating a Transportation Demand Management 

(TDM) consortium with multi-regional “players” in the realm of TDM, uniting scattered networks of 

private, public, and non-profit resources (including mobility managers and Transportation Manage-

ment Associations); and 

 

WHEREAS, in consultation with Ohio rideshare agencies, MORPC has identified the potential for pri-

vate and nonprofit entities to utilize the outcome of the study, ride matching software and the con-

sortium to better meet the needs of the commuter; and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC submitted an application for up to $50,000 to evaluate the feasibility for a cost-

effective multi-regional ridesharing system for MPO rideshare agencies in Ohio; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) at its meeting on September 28, 2015 and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) at its meeting on September 30, 2015 recommended ap-

proval of this resolution to the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore  
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLAN-

NING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the executive director is authorized to submit an application to the Local Gov-

ernment Innovation Fund and enter into agreement with the Ohio Development Ser-

vices Agency for a feasibility study and implementation of a multi regional ridesharing 

system for up to $50,000. 

 

Section 2. That the executive director is authorized to take such other action and execute and 

deliver such other documents as, acting with the advice of legal counsel, he shall 

deem necessary and appropriate to carry out the intent of this resolution. 

 

Section 3.  That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal de-

liberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption of 

this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee. 

 

       

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

             

Date 

 
 

Prepared by Thea Walsh 



 

Memorandum 
 

TO: 

 

Transportation Policy Committee 

 

FROM: 

 

Thea Walsh, AICP 

Transportation Systems and Funding 

 

DATE: 

 

October 2, 2015 

SUBJECT: Resolution T-19-15: “Establishing Priorities for Central Ohio 

Candidate Projects Submitted in 2015 for TRAC Funding”  

  
As reported to you previously, four projects were submitted to the Transportation 

Review Advisory Council (TRAC) for this year’s round of funding. TRAC is responsible 

for committing development and construction funding toward projects that meet the 

criteria of the Major New Capacity Program (generally projects over $12 million which 

increase roadway capacity and/or reduce congestion). Information sheets (attached) 

were prepared and posted to our website over the summer with details on the 

projects. 

 

Resolution T-19-15 establishes MORPC’s priorities for the 2015 requests. MORPC 

accepted comments on the projects through September 11th, and staff completed 

an evaluation of the four projects. This memo provides a summary of how the 

projects were evaluated and concludes with a recommendation on project 

prioritization. Upon adoption of Resolution T-19-15, the priorities will be presented to 

ODOT at the October 13th public hearing, and submitted in writing by the October 

14th deadline. 

 

Project Evaluation Summary 

 

MORPC staff evaluated the four TRAC projects based on the 2016-2040 Metropolitan 

Transportation Plan (MTP) goals and objectives adopted last December and January. 

Key elements of the MTP evaluation criteria adopted in May were used for the 

evaluation. The analysis results by goal are: 

 



 

 

T-19-15 

Memo 

Page 2 

 

 

- Adopted Goal: Position Central Ohio to attract and retain economic 

opportunity to prosper as a region and compete globally. The criteria for this 

goal considered number of jobs within one mile of facility, reduction of 

regional congestion, key developments being served by the facility, and 

reduction of peak travel delay. The project that performs best is the 

Columbus Crossroads I-70/I-71 East Freeway, which serves the region’s 

largest employment area in downtown Columbus. This project shows 

significant reductions in congestion and the most number of jobs served 

relative to the rest of the projects. The Far East Freeway Phase 2/3 project 

performs second best, with Far East Freeway Phase 1 and the I-270/US 23 

South Outerbelt Phase 2 performing least respectively. 

 

- Adopted Goal: Protect natural resources and mitigate infrastructure 

vulnerabilities to maintain a healthy ecosystem and community. The criteria 

for this goal considered reductions in emissions (PM2.5, VOC, and NOx). The 

project that performs best was the Columbus Crossroads I-70/I-71 East 

Freeway, because of the most congestion and vehicle-miles of travel 

reduction. The Far East Freeway Phase 2/3 performs second best, with the 

Far East Freeway Phase 1 and the I-270/US 23 South Outerbelt Phase 2 

performing equally in third place. 

 
- Adopted Goal: Reduce per capita energy consumption and promote 

alternative fuel resources to increase affordability and resilience of regional 

energy supplies. The criteria for this goal considered reduction in regional 

vehicle-miles traveled. The project that performed best is the Columbus 

Crossroads I-70/I-71 East Freeway with over almost twice the reduction of 

vehicle-miles traveled compared to the second best performing project, the 

Far East Freeway Phase 2/3. The Far East Freeway Phase 1 and the I-

270/US 23 South Outerbelt Phase 2 projects did not significantly impact 

regional vehicle-miles traveled. 

 
- Adopted Goal: Increase regional collaboration and employ innovative 

transportation solutions to maximize the return on public expenditures. The 

criteria for this goal considered the number of communities being served by 

the project, and whether any phase of the project was already constructed or 

under construction. The projects performing in terms of jurisdictions served 

are the Far East Freeway Phase 1 and Phase 2/3 projects. However, the 

Columbus Crossroads I-70/I-71 East Freeway and I-270/US 23 South 

Outerbelt Phase 2 projects are continuation of improvements already 

constructed in the area. Thus, overall there is no significant difference among 

the projects with regard to this goal. 



 

 

T-19-15 

Memo 

Page 3 

 

- Adopted Goal: Use public investments to benefit the health, safety, and 

welfare of people. The criteria for this goal considered the Environmental 

Justice population served and safety/crash ranking analysis. The project that 

performed best was the Columbus Crossroads I-70/I-71 East Freeway, which 

serves the highest percentage of minorities and disabled populations and 

impacts the area with the worst crash problem. The Far East Freeway Phase 

1 was second due to the significant crash problem that would be improved. 

The Far East Freeway Phase 2/3 and the I-270/US 23 South Outerbelt Phase 

2 are next respectively.  

 

- Adopted Goal: Create sustainable neighborhoods to improve residents' 

quality of life. The criteria for this goal considered origin/destination densities 

of project users and multimodal elements of the project such as bike lanes 

and sidewalks. The project that performed best was the Columbus 

Crossroads 70/I-71 East Freeway, which features bike lanes and sidewalks 

and has the highest origin/destination densities. The rest of the projects 

performed considerably lower without significant differences. 

 

Comments Received from the Public 

 

On August 7th, MORPC issued a press release requesting comments from the public 

on this year’s TRAC applications. Comments were due by September 11th. A total of 

four comments were submitted, all requesting that the Far East Freeway projects be 

prioritized due to commuter safety concerns (see attachment containing comments 

submitted). These comments were considered in the final recommendations, 

summarized below.   

 

MORPC Staff Ranking Recommendation 

 

Based on the goal-by-goal evaluation summarized above, the public comments and 

the phase for which money is being requested, MORPC staff recommends the 

following priority ranking: 

 

1. Columbus Crossroads I-70/I-71 East Freeway (construction funding) 

2. Far East Freeway Phase 1 (construction funding) 

3. Far East Freeway Phase 2 & 3 (detailed design funding) 

4. I-270/US 23 South Outerbelt Phase 2 (construction funding) 

 
The Community Advisory Committee and the Transportation Advisory Committee also 

recommended the above priority ranking which are included in resolution T-19-15. 
 



RESOLUTION T-19-15 

 

“ESTABLISHING PRIORITIES FOR CENTRAL OHIO CANDIDATE PROJECTS SUBMITTED IN 2015 FOR 

TRAC FUNDING” 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Policy Committee of the Mid-Ohio Regional Planning Commission 

(MORPC) is designated as the metropolitan planning organization (MPO) for the Columbus 

metropolitan area; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Transportation Review Advisory Council (TRAC) selects major new projects to receive 

funding from the Ohio Department of Transportation’s (ODOT's) major new capacity program; and  

 

WHEREAS, the TRAC has requested that each MPO submit its priorities for projects in that MPO’s 

planning area; and 

 

WHEREAS, four projects had been submitted to MORPC for acknowledgement prior to their submittal 

to the TRAC (see Attachment A); and 

 

WHEREAS, MORPC members and the public were asked to submit comments on the projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, staff provided the Community Advisory, Transportation Advisory and Transportation Policy 

committees information regarding the applications including public comments received for staff 

recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Community Advisory Committee (CAC) at its meeting on September 28, 2015 and the 

Transportation Advisory Committee (TAC) at its meeting on September 30, 2015 each created and 

forwarded a ranked list to advise the Transportation Policy Committee; now therefore  
 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE OF THE MID-OHIO REGIONAL 

PLANNING COMMISSION: 

 

Section 1. That the attached listing of projects (Attachment A) be established as the order of 

priorities for the four candidate projects submitted to TRAC from the MORPC 

transportation planning area for major/new capacity program funding.   

 

Section 2. That the TRAC is strongly discouraged from funding lower priority projects on this list 

at the expense of higher priority projects. 

 

Section 3. That it directs MORPC staff to forward these priorities to the TRAC and to present the 

priorities if the TRAC wishes to receive such a presentation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Resolution T-19-15 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Section 4. That the Transportation Policy Committee finds and determines that all formal  

  deliberations and actions of this committee concerning and relating to the adoption  

  of this resolution were taken in open meetings of this committee. 

 

 

             

Eric S. Phillips, Chair 

MID-OHIO REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

             

Date 

 

 

Prepared by: Dina López 

  

Attachments: 

A. Priorities for the TRAC Major/New Program Candidate Projects



Attachment A 

Resolution T-19-15 

 

Priorities for the TRAC Major/New Program Candidate Projects 

 

 

 

 

 

Rank  Sponsor - Project  Current 

Tier  

2014 TRAC 

Funding 

Request  

Total Project Cost  

1  Columbus Crossroads I-70/I-

71 East Freeway Phase 5 

Tier III, requesting Tier 

I status for replacing 3 

bridges 

$13.1 million $19.8 million (This 

portion of Phase 5) 

2  Far East Freeway Phase 1 Tier II, requesting Tier I 

status 

$90.5 million $95.8 million (Phase 

1) 

3  Far East Freeway Phase 2/3 Tier II $7.0 million $77.6 million (Phase 

2/3) 

4 South Outerbelt I-270/US 23 

Phase 2 

Tier II, requesting Tier I 

status 

$14.1 million $15.6 million (Phase 

2) 



Page 1  

Far East I-70Taylor Road planned interchange - Oliver 
From: Larry oliver [loliver2@insight.rr.com] 
sent:  Tuesday, september 01, 2015 3:08 PM 
To: Dina Lopez 
subject:  Far East I-70/Taylor Road planned interchange. 

 

dlopez@morpc.org 
 

This above interchange would eliminate the traffic nightmare at the intersection of 
SR 
256 and SR 204. Thousands of people from developments east on SR 204 try to get to 
the Taylor square shopping center and to work in downtown columbus every day. This 
creates a real traffic nightmare now at SR 256/204. 

 

 
Thank you, 
Larry oliver 

mailto:loliver2@insight.rr.com
mailto:dlopez@morpc.org


Page 1  

2015 TRAC Application Far East Freeway I-270  Brice Road Phase 1 
From: Ayer Family [ayerfamily4@gmail.com] 
sent: Friday, september 04, 2015 5:18 PM 
To: Dina Lopez 
subject: 2015 TRAC Application, Far East Freeway, I-270 & Brice Road, Phase 1 

 

Dina Lopez, 
 

I am contacting you in regards to the 2015 TRAC Application, Far East Freeway, I-270 
& Brice Road, 
Phase 1. I fully support the change proposed in Phase 1 for a flyover ramp from 
I-270 south to I-70 
East. I also support Phases 2 & 3. 

 

I drive this section of the freeway every weekday for work and have done so since 
1999. I-70 to I-270 
in the morning, I-270 to I-70 in the evening. over the years, it has gotten much 
worse during the 
morning and evening rush hours. 

 

In January 2008, I was personally involved in a motor vehicle accident due to the 
back-up that occurs 
daily on I-270. I was the last car in line on I-270 waiting to get on at I-70, just 
past the Main Street 
entrance ramp. My vehicle was hit from the rear by a car traveling approximately 45 
MPH as he got on 
I-270. This accident resulted in my full size pick-up truck being totaled and years 
of physical pain from 
my injury that I still endure today. 

 

Each and every day when I drive this section of road I often see a similar accident 
or even multiple 
accidents. 

 

In addition, as I sit in line waiting to get on I-70, it is very unsafe and 
frustrating to have cars on either 
side passing you at 55 - 65 MPH. some of those cars will pass on the left only to 
cut in at the last 
minute. 

 
I am sure you are aware of the need for this project, but I wanted to provide a 
firsthand opinion. 
Please make this project a priority. 

Thanks for your time, 

scott Ayer 
614-866-2437 

mailto:ayerfamily4@gmail.com


Page 1  

SR  25670 - Bauer 
From:   terry bauer [tbaueruni@yahoo.com] 
sent: Thursday, september 10, 2015 6:45 PM 
To:  Dina Lopez 
subject: SR  256/70 

 

I would like to put in a word about the horrible congestion at SR  256 and 
70. This area is just at a standstill every morning and I am asking that the 
area be moved to 1mmediate fix list. we seem to be just far enough out 
that our concerns are seemingly ignored. Please consider this area as soon 
as possible! 
Thank you, Terry Bauer, 9939 oxford Dr. Pickerington, oh, 43147 

mailto:tbaueruni@yahoo.com


 

TRAC comments - DeGreer 
From:  Tom DeGeeter [degeeter@outlook.com] 
sent:  Friday, September 11, 2015 12:11 PM 
To:   Dina Lopez 
subject:       TRAC comments 

 

I have never taken the time to provide feedback on similar issues in the past as I 
have believed 
the impact would be minimal, however, I am compelled to comment on this selection 
process. 
I experience 3 of the 4 options being considered on my daily commute from 
Pickerington to 
Dublin, all except the south outerbelt project. From my perspective the Far East 
Freeway 
Phase 1 project is by far the most critical project on the list. while the other 3 
pro ects surely 
mer1t consideration, completing the Far East Freeway Phase 1 will have the most 
immediate 
impact on reducing congestion and improving traffic flow, but most importantly, it 
will improve 
safety.                                                              · 

 

Each afternoon as I approach I-70 from I-270 southbound traffic suddenly slows to a 
crawl 
between Main St and Livingston Ave at least a mile from I-70.  It is the longest 
regular backup 
that I experience in the columbus Metro area.  while the slowdown and time lost 
sitting in the 
car are aggravating, my biggest concern is being rear ended at high speed by someone 
who is 
not prepared for the sudden slowdown. I am constantly checking my rear view mirror 
to make 
sure that the person behind me is reacting to the slowdown. The number of accidents 
and 
injuries that I come across in this stretch of road is staggering. I only hope that 
it will not take 
more fatal accidents to fix this stretch of road and the interchange with I-70. 

 

Additionally, after waiting in line for more than a mile to get to I-70, you must 
then be on the 
lookout for the reckless drivers that try to merge on to the ramp from I-270 south 
to I-70 East 
from the far left lane, while also working to merge with the traffic coming from 
I-70 west to I- 
270 south. while I appreciate the columbus Police Department's periodic mass 
enforcement 
activity to ticket these drivers, it is not a solution to the actual problem that 
the cloverleaf 
design can no longer handle the amount of traffic that currently passes through it. 

 

 

I ask that you identify the Far East Freeway Phase 1 project as the top priority. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide comments. 

Tom DeGeeter 
degeeter@outlook.com 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

Page 1 

mailto:degeeter@outlook.com
mailto:degeeter@outlook.com
mailto:degeeter@outlook.com


 

 
 

Insert map figure 

here 

 
 

 
 

2015 TRAC APPLICATIONS  COLUMBUS CROSSROADS, EAST 

FREEWAY I-70/I71 (PHASE 5) 
 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY: 

ODOT DISTRICT 6 

 
Project ID per ODOT: 

70/71 Phase 5 (East 

Freeway) 

 
ODOT PID: 88035 

 

 
On MORPC’s MTP: Yes 

 

 
Currently on Tier III 

Requesting Tier I Status 
 

 
Total Phase 5 Cost: 

$19.8 million 

 
Previous TRAC Funding: 

$6.7 million ($5.5 million 

for detailed design, $1.2 

million for right-of-way) 
 

 
2015  Funding Request: 

from TRAC: 

$13.1 million (for 

construction) 
 

 
ODOT Project Schedule: 
Planning studies: August 2005 

Interchange Studies: July 2009 

Env. Approvals: July 2009 

Prelim. Engineering: Oct. 2013 

Detailed Design: Dec. 2015 

Right-of-Way: February 2016 

Utility Relocation: April 2016 

 
 
 

ODOT Project Website: 
http://www.dot.state.oh.us/ 

projects/7071/Pages 

WHAT IS IT AND WHY IS IT IMPORTANT? 

The Columbus Crossroads innerbelt project is an overall set of highway interchange 

improvement projects within the downtown and near downtown areas.  The projects 

seek  to  increase  safety,  reduce  congestion,  create  new  urban  avenues  with 

complete streets, enhance freeway crossings with safe pedestrian and bike 

accommodations, and remove unsafe interchange ramps. Phase 1 of the overall 

improvements (I-71 & I-670 interchange areas) was completed in 2014. Phase 2C 

(Mound Street connector) was also completed in 2014. TRAC construction funding 

has already been committed to other phases as well. This application continues the 

advancement of these improvements as expeditiously and efficiently as possible. 

 
WHAT IS THE  TRAC REQUEST? 

 

This TRAC request is for $13.1 million for construction funds for Phase 5 of the 

Columbus Crossroads improvements project.  Phase 5 will widen I-70 on the east 

side of downtown Columbus between 18th Street and Fairwood Avenue from four 

lanes to six lanes in each direction, and replaces the overhead bridges of Ohio, 

Champion, Linwood, Miller and Kelton Avenues. With this application, District 6 is 

requesting funding to replace three bridges (Ohio, Champion and Linwood Avenues) 

to remedy the deteriorating parapets that is causing pieces of concrete to fall onto 

the freeway below. The new bridges of Ohio and Champion Avenues will 

accommodate bike lanes, and all three bridges will include sidewalks on both sides, 

which will help reconnect neighborhoods in the area that were disconnected when I- 

70 was originally constructed. If funding for the replacement of these three bridges 

is not secured, a parapet rehabilitation project will need to be constructed using 

District Preservation funds at an estimated cost of $750,000. 

http://www.dot.state.oh.us/


 

 
 

Insert map figure 

here 

 
 

 
 

2015 TRAC APPLICATIONS FAR EAST FREEWAY, I-270 & BRICE 

ROAD (PHASE 1) 
 
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ODOT DISTRICT 6 

 
Project ID per ODOT: 

FRA IR 70 Far East 

Freeway Study 

 
ODOT PID: 95369 

 

 
On MORPC’s MTP: Yes 

 
Currently on Tier II 

Requesting Tier I Status 
 

 
Total Phase  1 Cost: 

$95.8 million 

 
Previous TRAC Funding: 

$5.3 million (Phase 1, for 

detailed design) 

 
2015  Funding Request: 

from TRAC: 

$90.5 million 

($1.5 million  for right-of- 

way, and $89.0 million for 

construction) 
 

 
ODOT Project Schedule: 
Planning studies: April 2005 

Prelim. Engineering: July 2014 

Env. Approvals: June 2015 

Interchange Studies: Aug. 2015 

Right-of-Way: June 2016 

Utility Relocation: October 2016 

Detailed Design: April 2017 

 
 
 
 

ODOT Project Website 

www.dot.state.oh.us/ 

districts/D06/projects/ 

FarEastFreewayStudy/ 

 
 

WHAT IS IT AND WHY IS IT IMPORTANT? 
I-70 from Livingston Avenue to the Fairfield/Licking County Line is referred to 

as the "Far East Freeway”, a series of transportation improvements that 

address the growing regional travel demand between downtown Columbus 

and its eastern suburbs. The Far East Freeway interchange improvements in 

the  I-270  and  Brice  Road  area  involve 4  phases that  will  result  in  the 

widening of shoulder widths, increasing interchange spacing between I-270 

and Brice Road to relieve heavy weaving volumes, and other improvements 

to relieve traffic congestion resulting from the development of   several 

commercial and residential developments in the area. 
 

 

WHAT IS THE TRAC REQUEST? 

This TRAC request is for $90.5 million in right-of-way and construction funds 

for Phase 1 of I-270 and Brice Road area.  This application also requests a 

Tier I status for this phase.  Phase 1 will replace the southbound I-270 to the 

eastbound I-70 loop ramp with a flyover ramp and construct auxiliary lanes 

along eastbound I-70 between I -270 and Brice Road. A funding request for 

detailed design of phases 2 & 3 has also been submitted in this application 

cycle.  Phase 4 will remain as a future TRAC request. 

http://www.dot.state.oh.us/
http://www.dot.state.oh.us/


 
 

 
 

2015 TRAC APPLICATIONS FAR EAST FREEWAY, I-270 & BRICE 

ROAD (PHASE 2 & 3) 
 
 

 

SUBMITTED BY: 

ODOT DISTRICT 6 

 
Project ID per ODOT: 

FRA IR 70 Far East 

Freeway Study 

 
ODOT PID: 98232 

 

 
On MORPC’s MTP: Yes 

 
Currently on Tier II 

 

 
Total Phase 2 & 3 Cost: 

$77.6 million 

 
Previous TRAC Funding: 

for Far East Freeway : 

$5.3 million (for Phase 1 

detailed design) 

 
2015  Funding Request 

from TRAC: 

$7.0 million (for Phase 2 

& 3 detailed design) 
 
 

 
ODOT Project schedule 
Planning studies: April 2005 

Prelim. Engineering: July 2014 

Env. Approvals: June 2015 

Interchange Studies: Aug. 2015 

Right-of-Way: June 2016 

Utility Relocation: October 2017 

Detailed Design: April 2018 

 

 
ODOT Project website: 

www.dot.state.oh.us/ 

districts/D06/projects/ 

FarEastFreewayStudy 

 

WHAT IS IT AND WHY IS IT IMPORTANT? 
I-70 from Livingston Avenue to the Fairfield/Licking County Line is referred to 

as the "Far East Freeway”, a series of transportation improvements that 

address the growing regional travel demand between downtown Columbus 

and its eastern suburbs. The Far East Freeway interchange improvements in 

the  I-270  and  Brice  Road  area  involve 4  phases that  will  result  in  the 

widening of shoulder widths, increasing interchange spacing between I-270 

and Brice Road to relieve heavy weaving volumes, and other improvements 

to relieve traffic congestion in the area. 
 

 
 

WHAT IS THE TRAC REQUEST? 
 

This TRAC request is for $7 million for detailed design for Phase 2 and 3 of 

the I-270 and Brice Road area. Phase 2 reconfigures the north half of the 

Brice Road interchange, construction of westbound ramps to the I-270 

interchange, and includes the replacement of the Brice Road bridge. Phase 3 

constructs the south half of the Brice Road interchange. Phase 1 has Tier II 

funding for detailed design, and has a current request for Tier 1 construction. 

Phase 4 will remain as a future TRAC request. 

http://www.dot.state.oh.us/
http://www.dot.state.oh.us/


 

 
 

Insert map figure 

here 

 
 

 
 

2015 TRAC APPLICATIONS  SOUTH OUTERBELT, I-270 & US-23 

INTERCHANGE (PHASE 2) 
 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY: 

ODOT DISTRICT 6 

 
Project ID per ODOT: 

FRA IR 270 South 

Outerbelt (270 & 23 

Interchange) 

 
Project Phase: 

Phase 2 

 
ODOT PID: 92616 

 

 
On MORPC’s MTP: Yes 

 

 
Currently on Tier II 

Requesting Tier I Status 
 

 
Total Project Cost: 

$15.6 million 

 
Previous TRAC Funding: 

$1.5 million (for detailed 

design) 
 

 
2015  Funding Request: 

from TRAC: 
$14.1 million ($100,000 

for right-of-way, $14 

million for construction) 
 

 
 
 
 

ODOT Project Schedule: 
Planning studies: May 2010 

Interchange Studies: July 2013 

Prelim. Engineering: July 2013 

Env. Approvals: Sept. 2014 

Detailed Design: March 2016 

Right-of-Way: March 2017 

Utility Relocation: March 2017 

 

WHAT IS IT AND WHY IS IT IMPORTANT? 
 

The South Outerbelt projects are composed of improvements that seek to reduce 

congestion and increase capacity on I-270 between I-71 and US-23 by widening 

each facility and reconfiguring the interchanges of I-270 and US-23, I-71 and I-270, 

and I-71 and Stringtown Road. The projects will allow the successful integration of 

transportation needs and recent roadway network improvements, which involved 

the reconstruction of the structure over the Scioto River and the widening of I-270. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

WHAT IS THE  TRAC REQUEST? 
 

This TRAC request is for $14.1 million ($100,000 for right-of-way and $14 million 

for construction funds).  This project includes the removal of two low speed loop 

ramps, the addition of two new signalized ramps, and a superstructure replacement 

of a flyover ramp.  This project is a phase of the recommendations from the South 

Outerbelt Study.   District 6 is requesting Tier I status for this component of the 

overall project. 


